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2017
985,252.36 19.53
683,305.22 13.55
637,723.63 12.64
202,106.95 4.01
175,857.22 3.49
174,462.40 3.46
147,818.65 2.93
138,496.41 2.75
125,267.74 2.48
110,033.48 2.18
106,854.10 2.12
55,661.25 1.10
173,485.52 3.44
165,699.60 3.29
152,891.28 3.03
147,144 .39 2.92
92,710.36 1.84
81,155.42 1.61
78,732.60 1.56
73,049.76 1.45
59,966.65 1.19
59,152.35 1.17
58,010.45 1.15
56,479.10 1.12
56,034.00 1.11
50,776.20 1.01
44,761.12 0.89
4,892,888.21 97.00
151,100.69 3.00
5,043,988.90
670 100.00
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30
2017
GERMAN TREASURY BILL .000 | 2018/ /14 260,000 260,806.40 260,806.40 | 5.17
GERMANY GOVT .000 | 2018/10/12 186,000 192,491.47 189,367.17 | 3.75
FRANCE GOVT .250 | 2045/ /25 133,000 175,541.20 177,278.36 | 3.51
NETHERLANDS GOVT .500 | 2028/ /15 117,400 165,021.50 175,857.22 | 3.49
ITALY GOVT .000 | 2031/ / 104,000 25,435.00 145,611.44 | 2.89
FRANCE GOVT .750 | 2021/ /25 126,000 151,049.61 144,801.47 | 2.87
IRELAND GOVT .400 | 2025/ /13 102,000 138,274.65 138,496.41 | 2.75
AUSTRIA GOVT .400 | 2022/11/22 111,000 131,803.87 131,427.45 | 2.61
FRANCE GOVT .250 | 2018/10/25 122,000 139,155.64 128,334.85 | 2.54
10 | CZECH GOVT .875 | 2022/ /24 106,000 118,086.77 125,267.74 | 2.48
11 | REALKREDIT DANMARK .000 | 2024/ 7/ 830,000 123,931.96 122,211.60 | 2.42
12 | GERMANY GOVT .000 | 2037/ / 76,000 107,935.01 116,453.36 | 2.31
13 | SPAIN GOVT .850 | 2022/ /31 92,000 105,308.33 114,511.48 | 2.27
14 | HETA ASSET RES .375 | 2022/12/13 100,000 99,351.00 109,700.60 | 2.17
15 | ICELAND GOVT .500 | 2020/ /15 100,000 102,625.00 106,854.10 | 2.12
16 ITALY GOVT .000 | 2025/12/ 105,000 108,388.58 106,543.71 | 2.11
17 | FRANCE GOVT .250 | 2026/11/25 102,000 95,260.06 98,248.85 | 1.95
18 | GERMANY GOVT .250 | 2027/ /15 99,000 96,533.33 97,700.72 | 1.94
19 | BELGIUM KINGDOM .000 | 2032/ /28 70,000 99,533.00 97,493.27 | 1.93
20 | GERMANY GOVT .500 | 20447 / 69,400 91,190.85 89,767.65 | 1.78
21 | GERMANY GOVT .000 | 2025/ /15 79,000 85,790.58 84,368.92 | 1.67
22 ITALY GOVT .750 | 2033/ 7/ 58,000 75,714.00 80,619.30 | 1.60
23 | UBS AG LONDON .375 | 2021/ /16 75,000 79,083.00 78,732.60 | 1.56
24 | BUONI POLIENNALI DEL TES .500 | 2018/ / 75,000 80,775.00 76,932.68 | 1.53
25 | BELGIUM KINGDOM .000 | 2035/ /28 43,000 66,500.67 68,494.10 | 1.36
26 | FRANCE GOVT .250 | 2024/ /25 58,000 62,372.02 66,025.98 | 1.31
27 | NORDEA HYPOTEK .000 | 2022/ / 600,000 64,524.53 63,210.52 | 1.25
28 ITALY GOVT .500 | 2022/ / 50,000 63,040.93 61,224.26 | 1.21
29 | AMERICA MOVIL .750 | 2022/ /28 50,000 61,500.00 59,966.65 | 1.19
30 | UNICREDIT SPA .375 | 2022/ /31 50,000 55,425.00 59,152.35| 1.17

2017

2017
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2017

2008 8,910 1,184 9.41 1,250
2000 7,608 1,011 9.70 1,289
2010 6,749 897 10.07 1,338
2011 5,506 731 9.68 1,286
2012 4,730 628 9.88 1,313
2013 6,015 799 10.26 1,363
2014 5,786 769 10.45 1,388
2015 5,554 738 10.77 1,431
2016 4,823 641 10.62 1,411
2017 4,410 586 10.19 1,354
2016 10 4,766 633 10.54 1,400
11 4,679 622 10.38 1,379
12 4,693 623 10.39 1,380
2017 4,570 607 10.20 1,355
4,558 606 10.29 1,367
4,434 589 10.20 1,355
4,420 587 10.20 1,355
4,410 586 10.19 1,354
4,471 594 10.11 1,343
5,071 674 10.10 1,342
5,146 684 10.15 1,348
5,044 670 10.08 1,339

(21—0) LMER(2002/12/19)~2017%98298 (H§H1-0)

=0 o HAEEN(EA1-0.58) 12

sl | CSRDRIREEE(1-0.58) | o

140

120

0

0271219 041219 06/12/19 081219 101219 1271219 14712719 16M1219
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2017
2007 2008 0.228 30.29
2008 2009 0.228 30.29
2009 2010 0.228 30.29
2010 2011 0.228 30.29
2011 2012 0.148 19.66
2012 2013 0.132 17.54
2013 2014 0.132 17.54
2014 2015 0.132 17.54
2015 2016 0.132 17.54
2016 2017 0.132 17.54
2016 10 0.011 1.46
11 0.011 1.46
12 0.011 1.46
2017 0.011 1.46
0.011 1.46
0.011 1.46
0.011 1.46
0.011 1.46
0.011 1.46
0.011 1.46
0.011 1.46
0.011 1.46

2017 3.070
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5882 300 300 | 99,730 99,730 947,030 947,030
2008
oo 3,000 3,000 | 165,420 165,420 | 784,610 784,610
2009
200 12,200 12,200 | 126,630 126,630 | 670,180 670,180
2010
oo 24,000 24,000 | 125,210 125.210 | 568,970 568,970
2011
o 23,100 23,100 | 113,400 113,400 | 478,670 478,670
2012
o 175,380 175,380 | 68,010 68,010 | 586,040 586,040
2013
oo 27.490 27.490 | 59,970 50,970 | 553,560 553,560
2014
o 27.900 27.900 | 65,600 65,600 | 515,860 515,860
2015
2w 138,050 138,050 | 199,820 109,820 | 454,090 454,090
2016
o 11,050 11,050 | 32,570 32,570 | 432,570 432,570
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2017 31
2017 2016
130,280 17,308 24,937 3,313
4 1
, 4,348,321 577,674 4,844,919 643,647
4,478,601 594,982 4,869,860 646,961
68,805 9,141 45,715 6,073
, 954 127
68,805 9,141 46,669 6,200
4,409,796 585,841 4,823,191 640,761

2017 21
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2017 31
2017 2016
10 3,154 419 119,204 15,836
472 63
3,154 419 119,676 15,899
321 43 55 7
2,809 373 3,070 408
23,424 3,112 25,576 3,398
4,665 620 5,119 680
14,059 1,868 15,341 2,038
9,350 1,242 10,238 1,360
6,086 809 6,651 884
2,820 375 3,917 520
3,287 437 3,232 429
23,908 3,176 30,463 4,047
33,808 4,491 50,940 6,767
19,329 2,568 13,575 1,803
143,866 19,113 168,177 22,342
(140,712) (18,694) (48,501) (6,443)
12 (58,990) (7,837) (63,262) (8,404)
(58,990) (7.837) (63,262) (8,404)
(199,702) (26,530) (111,763) (14,848)
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2017 31
2017 2016

4,823,191 640,761 5,553,794 737,822

114,786 15,249 1,461,717 194,189

(336,797) (44,743) (2,115,685) (281,069)

(1,470) (195) 1,124 149

9,788 1,300 34,004 4,517

(199,702) (26,530) (111,763) (14,848)

4,409,796 585,841 4,823,191 640,761
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2017 31
1990
2002 11
15
10
2002 12 19
2003 30 2003 30
2003 12
102 102

102
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2017
31

102 7.1

2017

4,293,459 52,436,569 20,115,542 4,723,399

18,600,839

1,756
32,262
53,106 443,491 215,307 159,816

4,348,321 52,880,060 20,330,849 23,516,316
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2016

4,781,952 50,142,408 22,008,806 4,655,473
20,019,464
34,841
62,967 478,932 247,528 236,440
4,844,919 50,621,340 22,256,334 24,946,218

954

954

2017

4,293,459 4,293,459
1,756 1,756
4,295,215 4,295,215
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2016
4,781,952 4,781,952
4,781,952 4,781,952
954 954
954 954

2017
19,428,188 33,008,381 52,436,569
19,428,188 33,008,381 52,436,569

2016
19,031,925 31,110,483 50,142,408
19,031,925 31,110,483 50,142,408

2017
20,115,542 20,115,542
20,115,542 20,115,542

2016
22,008,806 22,008,806
22,008,806 22,008,806

72/284



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017
4,723,399 4,723,399
18,600,839 18,600,839
23,324,238 23,324,238
2016
4,655,473 4,655,473
20,019,464 20,019,464
24,674,937 24,674,937
2017 FRED 62 FRS 102
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95
20

11

95

2017 31

2.67 2016 5.48
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2017 31 0.09
2017 31

0.09

0.19 0.02

0.12 0.02

0.36 0.10

0.08 0.03

0.23 0.09

0.20 0.08

10 0.18 0.07

15 0.03 0.01

20 0.18 0.06

25 0.02 0.01

30 0.01 0.00

2016
31 0.29
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2016 31
0.29
0.46 0.00
0.06 0.01
0.23 0.04
0.37 0.08
0.15 0.04
0.15 0.05
10 0.05 0.02
15 0.13 0.04
20 0.31 0.10
25 0.09 0.03
30 0.08 0.02
(a
(b
(c
(d
(e
80
20
20
2017 31
0.00 0.00 0.00
6.91 0.00 6.91
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8.11 0.00 8.11
50.30 94.05 43.75
33.68 5.95 27.73

1.00 0.00 1.00

100.00 100.00
2016 31

0.00 0.00 0.00

4.47 0.00 4.47

7.34 0.00 7.34
56.12 99.00 42.88
24.95 1.00 23.95

7.12 0.00 7.12

100.00 100.00

Counterparty & Concentration Risk Group

2016
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2017 31
10.85 0.07
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
6.59 0.08
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
10 0.00 0.00
10 15 0.00 0.00
15 20 0.11 0.01
20 82.45 2.99
100.00 3.15
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2016 31
2.43 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
15.25 0.29
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
10 0.00 0.00
10 15 0.00 0.00
15 20 0.11 0.01
20 82.21 2.95
100.00 3.25
2017 31
169,449 169,449
23,998,947 23,998,947
24,168,396 24,168,396
2016 31
144,694 144,694
25,418,519 25,418,519
25,563,213 25,563,213

10
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2017 31 2016 31
2017 2016
1.36 1.61
20.24 19.38
16.68 18.16
61.72 60.85
100.00 100.00
2017
31 12 0.99
0.99 2016 31
1.00
52,679,947
53,203,749 52,156,145

80/284



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12 2016 2017 31
3.00 2.99
2017 31 0.19 2015
2016 31 2.67
2016 31
2017 31 2016 31
2017 31
5.01
4.99

0.50 53,998,756 2.50 975,376,175,993 2.50 0.00

0.25 53,339,351 1.25 963,493,524,828 1.25 0.00

0 52,679,947 951,610,873,663

0.25 52,020,543 1.25 939,728,222,498 1.25 0.00

0.50 51,361,138 2.50 927,845,571,333 2.50 0.00
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2016 31
4.85
4.83
0.50 52,460,914 2.43 938,164,037,190 2.42 0.01
0.25 51,839,886 1.21 927,102,834,486 1.21 0.00
0 51,218,857 916,041,631,782
0.25 50,597,828 1.21 904,980,429,078 1.21 0.00
0.50 49,976,800 2.43 893,919,226,375 2.42 0.01

10
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2017 31 2016 31
2017 31 2016 31
38.20 39.20
59.90 58.90
1.90 1.90
0.00 0.00
100.00 100.00
2017 31
741,080 741,080
52,679,947 52,679,947
53,421,027 53,421,027
2016 31
376,274 376,274
51,218,857 51,218,857
51,595,131 51,595,131
2017 31 2016 31
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2017 31 2017 31 2016 31 2016 31
74.41 37.52 73.98 39.72
7.28 4.29 8.05 3.96
9.34 12.23 8.57 11.22
2.27 5.69 2.40 5.89
1.33 5.88 1.02 4.09
1.48 11.92 1.82 12.46
1.82 12.25 1.66 9.98
0.88 3.90 1.23 6.24
0.90 4.40 0.89 4.58
0.29 0.00 0.38 0.00
0.00 1.92 0.00 1.86
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
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2016

10
2017 31 43,739
2016 72,187
2016

2017 31

50
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12 2016 2017
31 3.71 3.68

2017 31

226,532 2017 31 4,409,796
1.027
2017 31 226,532
12
2016 31 2016 31
223,199
2016 31 4,823,191 0.926
2016
31 223,199
12
Investment Manager®™s Report
1.027 2017
0.926 2016
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2017 31 0.5
3.3
2017 31 4,409,79610
6.5411 144,237
2016 31 0.5
12 3.2
2016 31 4,823,19113
6.4814 156,271 0.5
3.2
2017 31
2017 31

0.50 3.3 144,237

1.00 6.5 288,474

0.50 3.3 144,237

1.00 6.5 288,474

2016 31 6.48
4,823,19115 2016 31
2016 31

0.50 3.2 156,271

1.00 6.5 312,543

0.50 3.2 156,271

1.00 6.5 312,543

10

11

12

13

14

15
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10
2017 31
28.95 25.86 3.09
29.85 31.04 1.19
14.15 10.36 3.79
24.30 32.74 8.44
2.75 0.00 2.75
100.00 100.00
2016 31
24.97 26.39 1.42
30.53 30.97 0.44
12.10 10.16 1.94
30.43 32.48 2.05
1.97 0.00 1.97
100.00 100.00
10

16

125
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2016
16
10
2017 31 2016 31

2017 31
68,805 68,805
4,409,796 4,409,796
4,478,601 4,478,601

2016 31
45,715 45,715
954 954
4,823,191 4,823,191
4,869,860 4,869,860
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15

2017 31

2017 31
99.98 100.00 0.02
0.02 0.00 0.02
100.00 100.00
2016 31
99.00 100.00 1.00
0.82 0.00 0.82
0.11 0.00 0.11
0.04 0.00 0.04
0.02 0.00 0.02
0.01 0.00 0.01
100.00 100.00

50
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12 2016 2017
31 3.82 3.66
2017 31
898,084 2017 31 20,446,29317
0.87818
2017 31
898,084
2016 31 2016 31
1,254,903
2016 31 22,527 ,50219 1.114%
2016 31 1,254,903

17

18

19

20

2017 31 0.5
21 3.7
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2017 31 20,446,2932
7.36 752,934
0.5
3.7 2017 31
2017 31
0.50 3.7 752,934
1.00 7.4 1,505,868
0.50 3.7 752,934
1.00 7.4 1,505,868
2016 31 7.09
2016 31 2016 31
22,527,50223
2016 31
0.50 3.6 799,726
1.00 7.1 1,597,200
0.50 3.6 799,726
1.00 7.1 1,597,200
21
22
23
10 50
2017 31
54.85 45.25 9.60
21.15 37.43 16.28
14.02 9.05 4.97
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8.74 8.27 0.47

1.24 0.00 1.24

100.00 100.00
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2016 31
50.34 46.08 4.26
20.89 36.80 15.91
19.92 9.30 10.62
5.43 7.82 2.39
1.00 0.00 1.00
2.42 0.00 2.42
100.00 100.00

20

125

2016
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10
2017 31 2016 31
2017 31
909,059 909,059
20,446,293 20,446,293
21,355,352 21,355,352
2016 31
77,864 77,864
22,527,502 22,527,502
22,605,366 22,605,366
2017 2016
135,951 131,927
96,182
2 2
102,460 125,724
238,413 353,835
2017 2016
3,589
3,589
2017 2016
27,884 21,578
1,206 1,202
29,090 22,780
43.739 2016
72,187
192 39 267
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17,820
32,628
2017 31 18,012 32,667 267
529 13 21
18,486
4 37,983
2016 31 4 19,015 37,996 21
37 14
41,856 52,622 39,150
12,178 327,337 766,414
51,832 153,822 90,023 84,249
4,758 218,065 46,036
2017 31 68,805 741,080 909,059 169,449
17 2 10
25,595 2,132 14,171
40,703 145,044 75,730 64,098
4,995 205,635 66,415
2016 31 45,715 376,274 77,864 144,694
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2017

2016

31

31

0.60

100,000,000
100,000,000

100,000,000
100,000,000
500,000,000
1,000,000,000

100,000,000
100,000,000
1,000,000,000

200,000,000
200,000,000
1,000,000,000

100,000,000
100,000,000

100,000,000
100,000,000
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454,090 5,014,380 2,211,760 3,320,160
11,050 872,730 19,140 123,130
(32,570) (566, 660) (175,570) (379,230)
432,570 5,320,450 2,055,330 3,064,060
515,860 5,755,650 2,607,210 3,793,820
138,050 556,210 66,280 135,370
(199,820) (1,297,480) (461,730) (609, 030)
454,090 5,014,380 2,211,760 3,320,160
0.61
0.67
0.60
500,000,000 0.61
1,000,000, 000 0.66
0.71
0.10
0.13
1,000,000, 000 0.115
0.10
0.13
1,000,000, 000 0.115
0.10
0.12
0.11
0.11
0.10
0.06
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2017

31

250,000,000
250,000,000
500,000,000

500,000,000
500,000,000
1,000,000,000

100,000,000
100,000,000

500,000,000
500,000,000
1,000,000,000
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0.50
500,000,000 0.45
0.40
0.50
1,000,000,000 0.45
0.40
0.50
0.45
0.60
1,000,000,000 0.55
0.50
228 2,675 1,056 1,227
1,911 22,282 8,889 10,224
364 4,454 1,735 2,044
1,147 22,288 5,238 12,268
748 3,471
493 5,795 2,112 2,249
464 1,321 575
3,268 33,247 15,764 17,053
43,209 61,760 51,758 38,609
51,832 153,822 90,023 84,249
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2016

2017
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244 2,600 1,139 1,294
2,035 21,784 9,701 10,786
409 4,355 1,905 2,153
1,219 21,783 5,683 12,939
818 3,811
530 5,632 2,278 2,372
389 1,749 840
3,232 34,320 15,095 17,032
31,827 52,821 36,118 16,682
31 40,703 145,044 75,730 64,098
31
69,779 249,548 94,403 421,257
57,809
12,343 12 11 8
82,122 307,369 94,414 421,265
(38,525) (133,150) (171,447) (106, 247)
(86,226)
(11,148) 787) (470) (153)
(49,673) (220,163) (171,917) (106,400)
484,686
2,710
2,710 484,686
(161,586) (517,102) (96,571)
605,610
(157,500)
137,899 2,209,852 627,189 775,484
1,470 5,083
(31,667) (6,453)
(9,788) 101,902 (16,872)
3,154 1,886,941 404,576 2,016,692
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12

2016

2017

31

31
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101,509 750,176 540,730 3,073
493,012
4,868 738 495 332
106,377 1,243,926 541,225 3,405
(24,850) (290,661) (123,861) (268,030)
(518, 265)
(4,876) (615) (408) 474)
(29,726) (809,541) (124,269) (268,504)
892
3 3
3 895
(75,315) (380, 060) (549,121) (568,972)
G77)
(75.892) (380,060) (549,121) (568,972)
583,806
(68,213)
153,573 2,545,716 771,594 940,848
(1,124) (10,805) (109,398) (45,477)
(34,004) (335,814) (23,875)

119,204 2,253,422 506,159 577,788

102

100
15
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2016 0.011 5,002 0.041 203,934
2016 0.011 5,004 0.041 203,963
2016 0.011 4,987 0.041 203,614
2016 0.011 4,986 0.041 204,864
2016 10 0.011 4,975 0.041 210,435
2016 11 0.011 4,958 0.041 218,043
2016 12 0.011 4,967 0.041 223,213
2017 0.011 4,928 0.041 223,196
2017 0.011 4,879 0.041 221,322
2017 0.011 4,782 0.041 221,053
2017 0.011 4,764 0.041 219,565
2017 0.011 4,758 0.041 218,065

58,990 2,571,267
2016 0.022 48,617 0.020 65,693
2016 0.022 48,633 0.020 65,473
2016 0.022 48,482 0.020 64,626
2016 0.022 48,015 0.020 64,073
2016 10 0.022 47,480 0.020 64,303
2016 11 0.022 47,016 0.020 63,245
2016 12 0.022 46,642 0.020 62,530
2017 0.022 46,389 0.015 47,658
2017 0.022 46,077 0.015 47,237
2017 0.022 45,801 0.015 46,820
2017 0.022 45,601 0.015 46,496
2017 0.022 45,382 0.015 46,036

564,135 684,190
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2016 31
2015 0.011 5,650 0.041 234,104
2015 0.011 5,578 0.041 234,427
2015 0.011 5,583 0.041 235,533
2015 0.011 5,559 0.041 236,437
2015 10 0.011 5,452 0.041 227,526
2015 11 0.011 5,423 0.041 220,529
2015 12 0.011 4,971 0.041 205,978
2016 0.011 4,966 0.041 205,865
2016 0.011 5,056 0.041 204,876
2016 0.011 5,020 0.041 204,929
2016 0.011 5,009 0.041 203,376
2016 0.011 4,995 0.041 205,635
63,262 2,619,215
2015 0.022 56,854 0.020 74,191
2015 0.022 56,399 0.020 73,385
2015 0.022 55,920 0.020 71,739
2015 0.022 55,590 0.020 70,727
2015 10 0.022 55,082 0.020 70,463
2015 11 0.022 54,709 0.020 69,145
2015 12 0.022 50,961 0.020 68,069
2016 0.022 48,481 0.020 67,872
2016 0.022 49,057 0.020 67,801
2016 0.022 49,086 0.020 67,101
2016 0.022 48,817 0.020 66,882
2016 0.022 48,677 0.020 66,415
629,633 833,790
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13
2017
4,409,796 52,679,947 20,446,293 23,998,947
432,570 5,320,450 2,055,330 3,064,060
10.19 9.90 9.95 7.83
2016
4,823,191 51,218,857 22,527,502 25,418,519
454,090 5,014,380 2,211,760 3,320,160
10.62 10.21 10.19 7.66
2015
5,553,794 59,700,066 26,993,145 30,020,330
515,860 5,755,650 2,607,210 3,793,820
10.77 10.37 10.35 7.91
14
1997 739
1997
15
16
2017 2016
7.439614 7.438465
4.390829
0.871064 0.764859
9.755083 9.299264
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2017

2017
0.889280
110.585000

21

2017 21
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2016
0.686698

2016
0.898270
110.095000
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2017 31
2016 : 7.35%

Austria Government 3.5% 15-Sep-21 7,000 8,182 0.19
Austria Government 3.4% 22-Nov-22 73,000 87,486 1.98
Heta Asset Res 2.375% 13-Dec-22 100,000 110,049 2.50
Republic of Austria 3.8% 26-Jan-62 10,000 16,842 0.38
Telekom Finanz 3.125% 03-Dec-21 20,000 22,495 0.51

245,054 5.56

2016 : 1.65%

Belguim Government 0.8% 22-Jun-25 35,000 36,383 0.83
Belgium Kingdom 4% 28-Mar-32 70,000 99,073 2.25
Belgium Kingdom 5% 28-Mar-35 26,000 42,261 0.96

177,717 4.04

2016 : 1.12%

Royal Bank of Canada 4.625% 22-Jan-18 50,000 51,618 1.17

51,618 1.17

2016 - 1.80%

Czech Government 3.875% 24-May-22 71,000 84,116 1.91

84,116 1.91

2016 : 2.73%

Realkredit Danmark 2% 01-Apr-23 209,000 30,751 0.70
Realkredit Danmark 2% 01-Apr-24 700,000 102,735 2.33

133,486 3.03

2016 : 17.56%

Axa FRN 16-Apr-40 50,000 56,088 1.27
BNP Paribas 2.5% 23-Aug-19 6,000 6,341 0.14
France Government 4.25% 25-Oct-18 122,000 130,312 2.95
France Government 3.75% 25-Apr-21 141,000 164,163 3.71
France Government 2.25% 25-May-24 48,000 55,086 1.25
France Government 1.75% 25-Nov-24 7,000 7,784 0.18
France Government 6% 25-Oct-25 40,000 58,784 1.33
France Government 0.25% 25-Nov-26 77,000 74,168 1.68
France Government 4% 25-Oct-38 2,000 2,941 0.07
France Government 3.25% 25-May-45 105,000 140,907 3.20
RCI Banque 2.25% 29-Mar-21 50,000 53,531 1.21

750,105 16.99
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2017 31
2016 @ 17.44%

Commerzbank 4% 23-Mar-26 15,000 16,461 0.37
Germany Federal Republic 1.5% 15-May-24 11,000 12,259 0.28
Germany Government 1% 12-Oct-18 186,000 190,577 4.32
Germany Government 2.5% 04-Jan-21 37,000 41,206 0.93
Germany Government 0.5 15-Feb-25 52,000 54,096 1.23
Germany Government 1% 15-Aug-25 131,000 141,282 3.20
Germany Government 0.25% 15-Feb-27 25,000 24,908 0.56
Germany Government 4% 04-Jan-37 76,000 119,079 2.70
Germany Government 2.5% 04-Jul-44 69,400 91,810 2.08
Germany Government 2.5% 18-Aug-46 77,000 102,834 2.33
KFW 4.375% 04-Jul-18 38,000 40,060 0.91

834,572 18.91

2016 : 2.22%

Iceland Government 2.5% 15-Jul-20 100,000 107,382 2.44

107,382 2.44

2016 : 4.35%

AIB Mortgage 4.875% 29-Jun-17 100,000 100,401 2.28
Cloverie Plc FRN 24-Jul-39 50,000 57,450 1.30
Ireland Government 5.4% 13-Mar-25 49,000 67,266 1.53

225,117 5.11

2016 : 15.07%

Buoni Poliennali Del Tes 3.5% 01-Jun-18 75,000 77,870 1.77
Buoni Poliennali Del Tes 0.7% 01-May-20 10,000 10,134 0.23
Buoni Poliennali Del Tes 4.75% 01-Sep-21 39,000 45,741 1.04
Italy Government 3.75% 01-Mar-21 22,000 24,720 0.56
Italy Government 5.5% 01-Sep-22 50,000 61,569 1.40
Italy Government 4.5% 01-May-23 8,000 9,502 0.22
Italy Government 2% 01-Dec-25 110,000 111,094 2.52
Italy Government 4.75% 01-Sep-28 20,000 24,755 0.56
Italy Government 6% 01-May-31 104,000 146,207 3.32
Italy Government 5.75% 01-Feb-33 18,000 25,096 0.57
Italy Government 4.75% 01-Sep-44 28,000 35,281 0.80
Unicredit SPA 4.375% 31-Jan-22 50,000 59,864 1.36

631,833 14.35

2016 : 1.26%

America Movil 4.75% 28-Jun-22 50,000 60,001 1.36

60,001 1.36
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2017 31

2016 : 5.39%
Heineken NV 3.5% 19-Mar-24 5,000 5,917 0.13
ING Bank NV FRN 29-May-23 50,000 52,963 1.20
Netherlands Government 5.5% 15-Jan-28 103,400 157,517 3.57
Rabobank Ned 4% 11-Jan-22 30,000 35,208 0.80
251,605 5.70
2016 : 2.72% - - -

2016 : 1.33%

Republika Slovenija 2.125% 28-Jul-25 10,000 11,006 0.25
Republika Slovenija 1.25% 22-Mar-27 24,000 24,089 0.55
Slovenia Government 5.125% 30-Mar-26 40,000 54,348 1.23
Slovenija Republic 1.5% 25-Mar-35 10,000 9,284 0.21
98,727 2.24

2016 : 7.69%
Bonos Y Oblig Del Estado 5.15% 31-Oct-44 13,000 18,862 0.43
Instituto De Credito Oficial 6% 08-Mar-21 15,000 18,348 0.42
Spain Government 4.6% 30-Jul-19 8,000 8,841 0.20
Spain Government 5.85% 31-Jan-22 97,000 122,337 2.76
Spain Government 5.9% 30-Jul-26 15,000 20,854 0.47
Telefonica 4.693% 11-Nov-19 50,000 55,701 1.26
244,943 5.54

2016 : 1.78%
Eurofima 4% 27-Oct-21 50,000 58,779 1.33
58,779 1.33

2016 : 3.27%
Nordea Bank AB 4% 29-Mar-21 50,000 57,160 1.30
Nordea Hypotek 1% 08-Apr-22 400,000 42,045 0.95
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB 1.5% 17-Jun-20 500,000 53,612 1.22
Sweden Government 3.5% 30-Mar-39 35,000 4,965 0.11
157,782 3.58
2016 : 0%

UBS London 1.375% 16-Apr-21 45,000 47,423 1.08
47,423 1.08
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2016 : 4.41%
Bank of America 4.625% 07-Aug-17
Goldman Sachs 6.375% 02-May-18
Morgan Stanley 5.5% 02-Oct-17

2016 : 99.14%

Danish Krone 09-Aug-17

Swedish Krona 12-Jul-17
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2017 31

50,000
30,000
50,000

(134,731)

(102,995)
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2017 31
Austria Government 3.9% 15-Jul-20 - 55,000
Austria Government 3.5% 15-Sep-21 - 35,000
Austria Government 3.4% 22-Nov-22 35,000 -
Belgium Kingdom 4% 28-Mar-32 70,000 -
Bonos Y Oblig Del Estado 3.45% 30-Jul-66 31,000 31,000
Bonos Y Oblig Del Estado 5.15% 31-Oct-44 - 32,000
France Government 2.25% 25-May-24 - 60,000
France Government 0.25% 25-Nov-26 77,000 -
France Government 5.75% 25-Oct-32 - 56,000
France Government 3.25% 25-May-45 81,000 -
Gas Natural Cap 4.5% 27-Jan-20 - 50,000
Germany Government 1% 12-Oct-18 91,000 -
Germany Government 2.5% 04-Jan-21 40,000 50,000
Germany Government 2% 04-Jan-22 70,000 186,000
Germany Government 0.5 15-Feb-25 55,000 56,000
Germany Government 1% 15-Aug-25 31,000 85,000
Germany Government 0.25% 15-Feb-27 55,000 30,000
Germany Government 2.5% 04-Jul-44 16,400 -
Germany Government 2.5% 18-Aug-46 84,000 30,000
Intesa Sanpaolo 4.125% 14-Apr-20 - 50,000
Ireland Government 5.4% 13-Mar-25 40,000 24,000
Italy Government 5.5% 01-Sep-22 27,000 -
Italy Government 2% 01-Dec-25 40,000 -
Italy Government 3.25% 01-Sep-46 44,000 44,000
Nordea Hypotek 1% 08-Apr-22 400,000 -
Poland Government 0.875% 10-May-27 - 37,000
Republic of Austria 1.2% 20-Oct-25 - 30,000
Republika Slovenija 1.25% 22-Mar-27 24,000 -
Spain Government 0.5% 31-Oct-17 - 31,000
Sweden Government 3.5% 30-Mar-39 - 295,000
UBS London 1.375% 16-Apr-21 45,000 -
20 20
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Daiwa Bond Fund Series
Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund
Statement of Financial Position

As at 31st May 2017
2017 2016

Notes EUR EUR
Assets
Cash 5 130,280 24,937
Debtors 6 - 4
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,3 4,348,321 4,844,919
Total Assets 4,478,601 4,869,860
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year 7 68,805 45,715
Financial liabilities at fair value through profitor loss 2,3 - 954
Liabilities (excluding Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units) 68,805 46,669
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating 4,409,796 4,823,191

Units

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Hiromitsu Tanaka Peter Callaghan
Director Director

Date: 215t September 2017
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Daiwa Bond Fund Series
Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st May 2017

2017 2016

Notes EUR EUR
Income
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profitor loss 10 3,154 119,204
Other income - 472
Total Income 3,154 119,676
Expenses
Bank interest 2 321 55
Trustee fees 9 2,809 3,070
Distributor fees 9 23,424 25,576
Agent Company fees 9 4,665 5,119
Investment Manager fees 9 14,059 15,341
Investment Adviser fees 9 9,350 10,238
Administration fees 9 6,086 6,651
Sub-custody expenses 2,820 3,917
Audit fees 3,287 3,232
Legal fees 23,908 30,463
Printing fees 33,808 50,940
Other expenses 19,329 13,575
Total Expenses 143,866 168,177
Net Expense (140,712) (48,501)
Finance Costs
Distributions 12 (58,990) (63,262)
Total Finance Costs (58,990) (63,262)
Decrease in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units after Distributions (199,702) (111,763)

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations.

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Daiwa Bond Fund Series
Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units

For the year ended 31st May 2017

2016
EUR
5,553,794

1,461,717
(2,115,685)

1,124
34,004

(111,763)

2017
EUR

Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
at start of the year 4,823,191
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Units issued 114,786
Payments for Redeemable Participating Units redeemed (336,797)
Net (expense)/income equalisation (Note 2) (1,470)
Net capital equalisation (Note 2) 9,788
Decrease in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units after Distributions (199,702)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
at end of the year 4,409,796

4,823,191

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31st May 2017

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa Bond Fund Series (the* Fund” ) was constituted on 7th November 2002, as an open-ended umbrella Unit Trust

authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland pursuant to the provisions of the Unit Trusts Act, 1990.

The Trust Deed constitutes the Fund, which is made up of the Sub-Funds. The proceeds from the issue of Units in a Sub-
Fund are applied in the records and accounts of the Fund for that Sub-Fund and the assets and liabilities and income and
expenditure attributable thereto are applied to that Sub-Fund subject to the provisions of the Trust Deed. Monies
subscribed for each Sub-Fund must be in the denominated currency of the relevant Sub-Fund. The Sub-Funds and their
denominated currencies are: Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund (EUR) (* EuroBond Fund” ), Monthly Dividend Australian
Bond Fund (AUD) (“ Australian Bond Fund” ), Monthly Dividend Canada Bond Fund (CAD) (* Canada Bond Fund” ) and
Monthly Dividend US Preferred Securities Fund (US$) (“ US Preferred Securities Fund” ).

The primary investment objective of Euro Bond Fund is to pursue income gains in a stable manner and to seek long term
capital growth through investments primarily structured in adiversified portfolio of Euro denominated investment
grade fixed income products including government bonds, supranational agencies” bonds, corporate bonds or asset-
backed securities listed or traded primarily on European exchanges but also on Recognised Exchanges. This Sub-Fund
will at no time invest more than 15% in emerging markets.

The primary investment objective of Australian Bond Fund is to provide investors with a high level of current income
through relatively stable distributions and to seek mid to long term capital appreciation while accepting moderate
level of risk. Thiswill be achieved through investing primarily in fixed income securities denominated in Australian
Dollars and generally listed or traded on a Recognised Exchange. This Sub-Fund will at no time invest more than 10% in
emerging markets.

The primary investment objective of Canada Bond Fund is to pursue income gains in a stable manner and to seek long term
capital growth through investing in investment grade fixed income products denominated in Canadian Dol lars including
government bonds, supranational agencies” bonds, corporate bonds, bonds issued by the governments of the Canadian
provinces or asset-backed securities listed or traded primarily on a Recognised Exchange and/or domestic Canadian
bonds traded on a Recognised Exchange.

The primary investment objective of US Preferred Securities Fund is to seek to provide high current income with a
secondary investment objective of seeking to provide capital appreciation through investing primarily ina portfolio

of preferred securities denominated in U.S. Dol lars or providing for payment in U.S. Dollars.

Australian Bond Fund and Euro Bond Fund commenced trading on 19th December 2002. Canada Bond Fund commenced trading on
30th June 2003 and US Preferred Securities Fund commenced trading on 30th September 2003.
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GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The Units of US Preferred Securities Fund were listed on the Irish Stock Exchange on 9th December 2003.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-Funds are as fol lows:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, as adjusted
for the revaluation of financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss and in compliance with Irish
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, including Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (* FRS 102" ).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that effect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are summarised in the period inwhich the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Financial Assets and Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
This category has two sub-categories: financial assets and liabilities held for trading and those designated by
management at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

Financial instruments held for trading (* trading securities” ) are securities that are acquired for generating a
profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer”s margin or are included in a portfolio inwhich a pattern of
short-term profit taking exists.

Derivatives such as forwards and futures are also categorised as held for trading. All derivatives are carried in
assets when amounts are receivable by the Sub-Funds and in liabilities when amounts are payable by the Sub-Funds.
Changes in fair values of derivatives are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the year end. The
quoted market price used for financial assets/liabilities held by the Sub-Funds is the current bid price. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss category are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise. Included in
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is interest earned on investments since the last
coupon payment date and dividends received on investments.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial Assets and Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

The Sub-Funds*® trading securities are accounted for on the trade date and are recorded at fair value at time of
acquisition. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred and included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part
of the net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profitor loss. All gains and losses from
trading financial instruments for the year ended 31st May 2017 are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on market conditions and information about the
financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgement and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the

estimates and those differences could be material.

Foreign Currencies

I'tems included in the Sub-Funds® financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the* functional currency” ), which is Euro (* EUR” ) in respect of Euro Bond Fund,
Australian Dollars (“ AUD” ) in respect of Australian Bond Fund, Canadian Dollars (* CAD” ) in respect of Canada Bond
Fund and United States Dollars (* US$” ) in respect of US Preferred Securities Fund. Securities transactions are
recorded in the financial statements on the trade date of the transaction and translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate prevailing at the close of business on the trade date. Assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the Sub-Funds® functional currencies at the exchange rates ruling at the year
end. Foreign currency gains or losses arising from trading activities are included in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

Income

Dividend income is recorded gross of any non-reclaimable withholding taxes suffered on an ex-date basis. Interest
income is accounted for on an effective interest basis gross of any non-reclaimable withholding taxes. Discounts and
premiums on securities are amortised and accreted rateably over the life of the respective securities. Bond income is
calculated using an annual percentage rate.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Net Income/(Expense) and Net Capital Equalisation

The Fund maintains equalisation accounts in each Sub-Fund with a view to ensuring that the level of dividends payable
on units are not affected by the issue and redemption of such units during a distribution period. The subscription
price of units is therefore deemed to include an equal isation payment calculated by reference to the net accrued
income and net gain/(loss) of the Sub-Fund and the first distribution in respect of any unit will include a payment of
capital usually equal to the amount of such equalisation payment. The redemption price of each unit also includes an
equalisation payment in respect of the net accrued income and net gain/(loss) of the Sub-Fund up to the date of
redemption.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Net Asset Value (* NAV” ) per Redeemable Participating Unit

Redeemable Participating Units are redeemable at the Unitholders option and are classified as financial liabilities.
The NAV per Redeemable Participating Unit is calculated by dividing the total Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units of the Sub-Fund by the number of Redeemable Participating Units in issue. All
Redeemable Participating Units are issued and redeemed at this price. Units are redeemed on the dealing day that the
redemption request is received and accepted by the Investment Manager.

Cash Flow Statement
The Sub-Funds have avai led of the exemption available to open ended investment funds under FRS 102 Section 7.1A not to
prepare cash flow statements.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2017

EUR AUD CAD us$
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss
Held for trading:
- debt securities 4,293,459 52,436,569 20,115,542 4,723,399
- preferred securities - - - 18,600,839
- forward currency contracts 1,756 - - -
- dividends due on investments - - - 32,262
- interest due on investments 53,106 443,491 215,307 159,816

Total financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 4,348,321 52,880,060 20,330,849 23,516,316

2016

EUR AUD CAD Uss$
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss
Held for trading:
- debt securities 4,781,952 50,142,408 22,008,806 4,655,473
- preferred securities - - - 20,019,464
- dividends due on investments - - - 34,841
- interest due on investments 62,967 478,932 247,528 236,440

Total financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 4,844,919 50,621,340 22,256,334 24,946,218

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading:

- forward currency contracts 954 - - -

Total financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss 954 h - h
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3. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The table overleaf shows financial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is
based on:

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);
those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2) and;
those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

Euro Bond Fund

2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Financial assets held for trading

Debt securities - 4,293,459 - 4,293,459

Forward currency contracts - 1,756 - 1,756
- 4,295,215 - 4,295,215

2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

EUR EUR EUR EUR

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Financial assets held for trading

Debt securities - 4,781,952 - 4,781,952
- 4,781,952 - 4,781,952

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profitor loss

Financial liabilities held for trading

Forward currency contracts - 954 - 954
- 954 - 954
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Australian Bond Fund

2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AUD AUD AUD AUD
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets held for trading
Debt securities 19,428,188 33,008,381 - 52,436,569
19,428,188 33,008,381 - 52,436,569
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AUD AUD AUD AUD
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets held for trading
Debt securities 19,031,925 31,110,483 - 50,142,408
19,031,925 31,110,483 - 50,142,408
Canada Bond Fund
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
CAD CAD CAD CAD
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets held for trading
Debt securities - 20,115,542 - 20,115,542
- 20,115,542 - 20,115,542
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
CAD CAD CAD CAD
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets held for trading
Debt securities - 22,008,806 - 22,008,806
- 22,008,806 - 22,008,806
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

US Preferred Securities Fund

2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uss Us$ uss Uss
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets held for trading
Debt securities - 4,723,399 - 4,723,399
Preferred securities - 18,600,839 - 18,600,839
- 23,324,238 - 23,324,238
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
us$ Us$ us$ us$
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets held for trading
Debt securities - 4,655,473 - 4,655,473
Preferred securities - 20,019,464 - 20,019,464
- 24,674,937 - 24,674,937

The Fund has early adopted“ FRED 62 Draft Amendments to FRS 102 - Fair Value Hierarchy Disclosures” , which is
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January 2017. This requires the Fund to classify fair value
measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements.
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RISK FACTORS

The main risks arising from the Sub-Fund"s financial instruments can be summarised as follows:

US Preferred Securities Fund

Set out below is a description of some of the more important types of risks and an outline of the processes
BlackRock Investment Management LLC (* BlackRock” ) has implemented to assess, monitor and control these
specific risks.

Market risk

Market risk represents the risk of adverse movements in markets (including asset prices, volatility, changes
in yield curve, implied option volatility or other market variables) for the securities, derivatives or the
underlying asset, reference rate or index, to which the derivatives relate. Such risk is created by holding
any financial instrument, physical or derivative, which creates exposure to movements in prices of a

financial instrument or market.

The following specific processes are in place to control market risk and prohibit speculation:

market risk for the Sub-Fund is assessed by BlackRock, where derivatives are included on a fully paid up
exposure basis. Where options or option related derivatives are used, exposure is determined on a delta

weighted basis;

restrictions on gearing of the portfolio are in place (i.e. where the level of market exposure exceeds the
market value of the Sub-Fund). Derivatives cannot be used to circumvent gearing/borrowing restrictions

imposed by the Sub-Fund®s investment guidelines;

net exposures of the Sub-Fund to an asset class, including the delta weighted exposure of derivative

instruments, are restricted by the Sub-Fund®s investment guidelines;

in the case of use of derivative positions to achieve exposure, the Sub-Fund will hold sufficient cash or
appropriate equivalent liquid assets to meet potential obligations arising from the net derivative
position. In the case of derivative positions to remove exposure, the Sub-Fund will hold assets which are

considered a reasonable hedge.

Portfolio construction operates within the overall risk control framework. Where appropriate, investment
supervisors or senior fund managers monitor and review Sub-Fund performance achieved against the benchmark,
BofA Merrill Lynch Hybrid Preferred Securities Index and performance objectives on a regular basis. Where
relevant, they also review asset allocation and sector strategy for consistency with house and team targets.

Regular investment reviews are run for the Sub-Fund. The risk reporting uses information and analysis

generated from, but not restricted to, systems such as Barra Aegis, Factset Portfolio Analysis, Lipper
Hindsight and S&P Micropal, as well as a number of internally developed BlackRock analytical tools.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

US Preferred Securities Fund (continued)

Market risk (continued)

BlackRock"s proprietary quantitative risk management analytics technology, models the risk characteristics
(including interest rate, yield curve, cash flow, credit and liquidity risk) of all sectors, individual
portfolios and securities, as well as indices and customised benchmarks. The comprehensive set of risk
measures, which is updated on a daily basis, includes: duration, swap-spread duration, key-rate duration,
convexity, option adjusted spread, bid-ask spread and volatility. The proprietary analytics system, also
allows BlackRock to reverse engineer each transaction before purchase. Securities (and portfolios) are
subjected to* what if” scenarios, identifying the effects interest rate shifts will have on the effective
duration and cash flows of the security and portfolio. This type of analysis provides a complete
understanding of each security and its parametric characteristics and often uncovers structural features of
the security affecting value that would otherwise not be apparent.

Value-at-Risk (* VaR” ) is one of the tools that BlackRock uses to measure total portfolio risk. BlackRock"s
VaR numbers can be interpreted in the following two ways:

1) An* expected” worst case loss - over one year, there is a 95% probability that the portfolio will not lose
more than its dollar VaR.

2) A regularly occurring event - in one out of 20 years, the portfolio will incur a loss greater or equal to
its VaR.

There are no specific VaR limits outlined in the Sub-Fund®s investment guidelines; however, BlackRock"s Risk
& Quantitative Analysis (“ RQA” ) group monitors the risk of the Sub-Fund on a daily, weekly and monthly
basis. In the case that the parametric risks of the Sub-Fund displays a noticeable deviation from other funds
with similar mandates, the RQA group will alert the Investment Manager to identify the causes to mitigate the
risk.

The building blocks for BlackRock®"s approach to VaR are key rate duration, principal component analysis and
scenario analysis. BlackRock uses the key rate duration approach that measures a portfolio"s sensitivity to
eleven different points on the yield curve. Key rate durations break up a parallel spot curve shift into
partial yield curve shifts. Principal components are unobserved factors that describe “ most” of the
historical movements in interest rates. Key rate durations, principal component analysis and scenario

analysis are used by BlackRock in all implementations of VaR.

VaR - Simulation (fat tails, nonlinear and asymmetric payoffs)

BlackRock Solutions (BRS) provides several market standard Portfolio Return Volatility and VaR models,
including parametric models, Grid Monte Carlo simulation and historical simulation. An enhanced
variance/covariance-based delta normal model, using key rate durations, is employed for linear portfolios.
Grid Monte Carlo is generally used for portfolios with non-linear risk profiles. A hybrid
simulation/analytical model, Comprehensive VaR, is relied on for large, global portfolios and captures both
linear and non-linear risk profiles.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

US Preferred Securities Fund (continued)

Market risk (continued)
VaR - Parametric

BRS provides a parametric Portfolio Return Volatility and VaR model that captures global risk factors. This
uniform approach assumes that portfolio sensitivities to changes in market risk factors may be approximated
by partial durations. The model values all cash flows explicitly and relies on key rate durations to obtain
portfolio sensitivities. Variance/covariance matrices are based on two years of exponentially (or uniformly)
weighted data. Downside loss potential (i.e., VaR in 95% terms) as well as anticipated risk/return in one
standard deviation terms may be reported for portfolios, benchmarks and on an active basis (i.e., the gap).

BRS mission is to be the most respected investment and risk manager in the world, and a valued partner to
their clients in all market cycles. Their job is to create value for their clients by delivering exceptional
products and service. BRS hold themselves to the highest ethical standards and operate with the utmost
integrity. These are the core values that define their culture.

Given these objectives, BRS continually work to improve their existing products by enhancing their systems
and research, developing new products to meet the changing market environments and needs of their clients,
and providing information and market insight to enable their clients to better understand and address market
events.

BlackRock"s VaR analysis system allows BlackRock to monitor volatility, duration and sector allocation
individually in detail which allows BlackRock to identify and quantify the specific risks to which the Sub-

Fund is exposed.

The portfolio relative VaR of the Sub-Fund, which is the aggregate of the risk contributions from factors,
including volatility, duration and sector allocations on 31st May 2017 was 267 basis points (2016: 548 basis
points) active versus the BofA Merrill Lynch Hybrid Preferred Securities Index benchmark on a one year time

horizon.

The Sub-Fund®s exposure to market risk refers to the securities as listed in the Schedule of Investments.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

US Preferred Securities Fund (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rates are determined by factors of supply and demand in the international money markets, which are
influenced by macro economic factors, speculation and central bank and government intervention. Fluctuations
in short term and/or long term interest rates may affect the value of the Sub-Fund. Interest rate risk is the
risk resulting of changes in the level of interest rates, in the slope of the yield curve, in the shape of
the yield curve, or in any other interest rate relationship.

Interest rate risk constraints within the Sub-Fund®s investment objectives (largely defined within duration
risk constraints) are monitored by Compliance on the Aladdin monitoring systems and exceptions are reported

daily to fund managers, account managers, BlackRock Legal and Compliance.

Interest rate exposure reports are available to the fund management teams on a regular basis. Among the ways
interest rate exposure is presented is by duration deviation from the benchmark, BofA Merrill Lynch Hybrid
Preferred Securities Index, detailed per maturity buckets, currency, sector or rating. In certain instances,
exposures are also compared to a model portfolio and any deviations from the model are highlighted.

As at 31st May 2017, the VaR of the Sub-Fund®s total curve exposure was -9 basis point active versus the

benchmark on a one year time horizon. In terms of risk contribution, the portfolio®s interest rate risk
reduced the overall risk of the portfolio.
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US Preferred Securities Fund (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Curve VaR analysis (as of 31st May 2017)
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Risk Group Duration (Yrs) Contribution (bps/yr)
Curve
United States -9
Tsy 3M -0.19 2
Tsy 1Y -0.12 2
Tsy 2Y 0.36 -10
Tsy 3Y 0.08 -3
Tsy 5Y -0.23 9
Tsy 7Y 0.20 -8
Tsy 10Y -0.18 7
Tsy 15Y 0.03 -1
Tsy 20Y 0.18 -6
Tsy 25Y 0.02 -1
Tsy 30Y 0.01 0

The figure in the* Contribution bp/yr” column indicates how much risk the Sub-Fund®s curve positioning at

various parts of the curve adds or reduces risk from the overall portfolio on a one year time horizon in

terms of basis points. As at 31st May 2016, the VaR of the Sub-Fund"s total curve exposure was -29 basis

points active versus the benchmark on a one year time horizon. In terms of risk contribution, the portfolio®s

interest rate risk reduced the overall risk of the portfolio.

Curve VaR analysis (as of 31st May 2016)

Risk Group Duration (Yrs) Contribution (bps/yr)
Curve
United States -29
Tsy 3M -0.46 0
Tsy 1Y -0.06 1
Tsy 2Y 0.23 -4
Tsy 3Y 0.37 -8
Tsy 5Y -0.15 4
Tsy 7Y 0.15 -5
Tsy 10Y -0.05 2
Tsy 15Y 0.13 -4
Tsy 20Y 0.31 -10
Tsy 25Y 0.09 -3
Tsy 30Y 0.08 -2
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

US Preferred Securities Fund (continued)

Credit risk

The price of a bond can move as its credit profile changes. Normally the lower the credit rating of an
issuer, the higher the yield it trades for and the probability of default. The goals of credit research are
to identify opportunities to add value, to avoid credit problems and to successfully navigate problems that
may surface. Accordingly, BlackRock have assembled a global credit research team of sector-specific taxable
(investment grade and high yield) and municipal analysts. While credit analysts work closely with corporate,
high yield and Municipal Investment Managers, no bond is purchased unless the credit is approved by the
responsible research analyst. Analysts seek to identify companies that:

(a) are well positioned within their respective industry,

(b) have strong and stable management teams,

(c) exhibit sound management, accounting and controls,

(d) produce sustainable and relatively predictable cash flows and
(e) maintain reasonable financial flexibility.

BlackRock analysts evaluate each credit risk through financial statement reviews and discussions with company
management. BlackRock believe that communication with company management provides invaluable insight. Once an
investment decision is made the same discipline is applied to the ongoing surveillance of all investments.

Credit analysts cover their industries closely and are responsible for monitoring all holdings in portfolios,
issuers in the relevant indices and issuers BlackRock do not own but might consider owning.

Under normal circumstances the Sub-Fund will invest at least 80% of its total assets in Preferred Securities
or Debt Securities that are rated Baa/BBB investment grade by the established rating services or if unrated,
are considered by the Investment Manager to be of comparable quality.

The Sub-Fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in securities rated below investment grade (Ba or lower
by Moody*"s, BB or lower by S&P Global Ratings® or BB or lower by Fitch) or, if unrated, are considered by the
Investment Manager to be of comparable quality, provided that, such securities are issued by an issuer having
outstanding a class of senior debt rated investment grade. If in the event an issuer is downgraded below
investment grade subsequent to the purchase by the Sub-Fund of the Preferred Securities or the Debt
Securities of that issuer the Sub-Fund may continue to hold such Preferred Securities or Debt Securities
provided that the Investment Manager will endeavour to sell such Preferred Securities Debt within a
reasonable timeframe.

The Sub-Fund also may invest up to 20% of its total assets in common stocks. The Sub-Fund does not intend to
invest directly in common stocks but may acquire and hold common stocks pursuant to a convertible feature in
a security, in unit offerings, in an exchange offer, or in connection with a restructuring or bankruptcy of
the security or similar transactions.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

US Preferred Securities Fund (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Portfolio by rating category (as of 31st May 2017)

Rating Portfolio Benchmark Difference
Government 0.00 0.00 0.00
AA 6.91 0.00 6.91
A 8.11 0.00 8.11
BBB 50.30 94.05 -43.75
BB 33.68 5.95 27.73
Other 1.00 0.00 1.00
Sum 100.00 100.00

Portfolio by rating category (as of 31st May 2016)

Rating Portfolio Benchmark Difference
Government 0.00 0.00 0.00
AA 4.47 0.00 4.47
A 7.34 0.00 7.34
BBB 56.12 99.00 -42.88
BB 24.95 1.00 23.95
Other 7.12 0.00 7.12
Sum 100.00 100.00

Also included under credit risk is counterparty risk and settlement risk. Counterparty risk is the potential
loss that BlackRock or their clients® accounts could incur if a counterparty is unable to perform on its
trading commitments.

BlackRock®s Counterparty & Concentration Risk Group is responsible for implementing, updating and enforcing
the firm-wide Counterparty Credit Policy and Procedures as follows:

1. assess prospective counterparty creditworthiness and approve counterparties;

2. measure and monitor credit exposure to each counterparty, broken out by asset classes;

3. monitor financial performance of counterparties in order to establish, confirm, or adjust exposures as
needed;

4. monitor levels of exposure by product, by tenor and by counterparty and provide feedback to portfolio
management when aggregate exposures warrant; and

5. provide guidance and supervision of credit issues for ISDA and other derivatives documentation.
BlackRock generally require their swap counterparties to be rated at least A at the onset of a trading
relationship.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

US Preferred Securities Fund (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Settlement risk is the risk that an expected settlement payment or obligation will not occur on time/at all.
Settlement is defined as the process by which a trade is entered into the books and records of all the
parties to the transaction, including brokers or dealers, a clearing house and any other financial
institution.

The vast majority of the markets BlackRock invest in are DVP (delivery versus payment) which has minimal
settlement risk. Where markets are classified as non-DVP (e.g. Russia) a special settlement agreement (pre-
payment/pre-delivery) with brokers is set-up to avoid any settlement risk on the principal.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a commitment that
it has entered into and cause the Sub-Fund to incur financial losses. The Sub-Fund is exposed to credit risk
on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement default.

SMT Trustees (lreland) Limited as Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited as its Custodian.
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited has, in turn, appointed Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (* BBH & Co.” ) as
their global sub-custodian. Both the cash & securities are ultimately held at BBH & Co., with cash being held
at BBH & Co. as Banker. The Sub-Fund has elected to enter into a BBH & Co. sweep program which means that BBH
& Co. will sweep cash into overnight eligible bank counterparty accounts in order to diversify overnight
exposure and/or to gain interest on the various accounts. The Sub-Fund acknowledges that participation in the
Cash Management Sweep (“ CMS” ) program involves investment risks (such as the loss of any balances swept)
and it also accepts the sovereign and counterparty risks associated with offshore overnight time deposits.
The financial instruments of the Sub-Fund are segregated from the assets of the other funds in the Fund and
also from the proprietary assets of the Trustee, Custodian and Global Sub-Custodian. The Fitch credit rating
of BBH & Co. is A+ (2016: A+).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that (i) a particular security or derivative position cannot be easily
unwound or offset due to insufficient market depth or market disruption or (ii) that the Sub-Fund*s financial
obligations arising from derivative activity (such as margin calls) will not be able to be met. The main
liability of the Sub-Fund is the redemption of any units that investors may wish to sell. Units can be
redeemed on any dealing day that the redemption request is received and accepted by the AIFM.

In addition, preferred securities may be substantially less liquid than many other securities such as common
stocks. The Sub-Fund may have difficulty disposing of Preferred Securities at a suitable price and time.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

US Preferred Securities Fund (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk is controlled in the following ways:

BlackRock"s investment management staff consider and maintain the liquidity of all instruments used,
including derivatives, in the context of the investment objectives and the liquidity requirements of the
Sub-Fund. Cash positions are monitored and reported on a daily basis to ensure the Sub-Fund has sufficient
capacity to meet obligations arising from its derivative positions and redemptions by Unitholders;

BlackRock also has procedures in place to review the Sub-Fund®s cash weightings and ensure liquidity
requirements will be met 1in the event of extreme market movements to meet obligation at
expiration/maturity;

RQA undertakes ad-hoc reviews of those funds which are particularly sensitive to liquidity risk, for
example, funds with significant exposure to high yield bonds, specific markets, or specific industry

sectors;

all liquid stocks are valued daily, based on market information. Illiquid stocks are reviewed for accuracy
as the need arises and on a formal monthly basis by the BlackRock Pricing Committees;

the BlackRock Pricing Committees will also deal with any significant market events (such as repatriation
issues) which affect liquidity of assets.

Liquidity table: Portfolio by Maturity breakdown (as at 31st May 2017)

Maturity Bucket Portfolio (%NAV) Duration Contribution
Cash 10.85 0.07
Other 0.00 0.00
0tolYears 0.00 0.00
1to 3 Years 6.59 0.08
3to5Years 0.00 0.00
5to 7 Years 0.00 0.00
7 to 10 Years 0.00 0.00
10 to 15 Years 0.00 0.00
15 to 20 Years 0.11 0.01
20+ years 82.45 2.99
Sum 100.00 3.15
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Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity table: Portfolio by Maturity breakdown (as at 31st May 2016)
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Maturity Bucket Portfolio (%NAV) Duration Contribution
Cash 2.43 0.00
Other 0.00 0.00
0to1lYears 0.00 0.00
1to 3 Years 15.25 0.29
3to5Years 0.00 0.00
5to 7 Years 0.00 0.00
7 to 10 Years 0.00 0.00
10 to 15 Years 0.00 0.00
15 to 20 Years 0.11 0.01
20+ Years 82.21 2.95
Sum 100.00 3.25

The maturity profile of the Sub-Fund®s financial liabilities as at 31st May 2017 was:

Liabilities

Creditors - due within one year

Total Net Assets attributable to Holders of

Redeemable Participating Units

Total Liabilities

Less than 1 month Total
Uss$ Uss$

169,449 169,449
23,998,947 23,998,947
24,168,396 24,168,396

The maturity profile of the Sub-Fund®s financial liabilities as at 31st May 2016 was:

Liabilities

Creditors - due within one year

Total Net Assets attributable to Holders of

Redeemable Participating Units

Total Liabilities

Less than 1 month Total
Uss$ Uss$

144,694 144,694
25,418,519 25,418,519
25,563,213 25,563,213

Borrowings by the Sub-Fund are al lowed only for liquidity purposes and will be limited to a maximum of 10% of its Net

Assets at any time. The Sub-Fund may undertake short term borrowings to fund repurchase payments to Unitholders or for

the short term funding of new investments pending the receipt by the Sub-Fund of the proceeds of sale or redemption of

other investments.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

US Preferred Securities Fund (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As for the Sub-Fund®"s redemption policy, a written redemption request should be received by the Manager at
its business office not later than 10:00 a.m. (Dublin time) on the Dealing Day on which the redemption is to
be effected. Units will be redeemed on the Dealing Day that the redemption request is received and accepted
by the Investment Manager. Redemptions will be paid by bank telegraphic transfer to the account of the
Unitholder in the Base Currency of the Sub-Fund, no later than five Business Days from and including the

Dealing Day on which the redemption is affected.

Currency risk
The currency exposure of the Sub-Fund can be found on page 90.

Australian Bond Fund

The main risks faced by Australian Bond Fund are set out below along with a brief overview of how these risks
are managed and monitored by the Investment Manager in accordance with the investment mandate.

The risk reports are reviewed daily by the Portfolio Manager, management and also by the Head of Fixed
Interest, so any major change in positioning over the previous day that is unexpected will be queried by
management. Additionally, a weekly risk meeting is held whereby the heads of the sector teams, senior
portfolio managers and the Head of Fixed Interest discuss risk across portfolios.

Market risk

Process for Monitoring of Market risk

The market risk of the Sub-Fund is managed by the Investment Manager on a number of levels. The Investment
Manager monitors the sensitivity of the portfolio®s return in relation to macro changes, such as movements in
interest rate and changes in interest rate spreads. AMP Capital Investors Limited"s (* AMPCI” ) Fixed Income
team now uses the BlackRock Aladdin Risk Management system to calculate the risk, and the portfolio manager
determines a Risk budget for the Australian Bond Fund and subsequently monitors these budgets. This allows
the Investment Manager to formulate the appropriate investment strategy in achieving the risk and return

objectives of the Sub-Fund.

The main tool for actual portfolio construction is the BlackRock Aladdin Risk Management system, which
produces daily interest rate and credit exposure reports for the Sub-Fund which is reviewed by the Investment
Manager and the team as a whole. These reports can be drilled down to individual security level or split
portfolio exposure into maturity bucket, credit rating, industry class and security type levels. These
exposures can be compared with relevant benchmarks, models or other like portfolios.

The daily reports include the output of the ex-ante tracking error model, which breaks the total investment
risk down into the key risk factors including stock specific risk. This report allows the Investment Manager
to monitor the major risk contributors for the portfolio compared to the preset risk budget of each AMPCI
Fixed Interest Portfolio.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Australian Bond Fund (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Concentration of Market risk

Concentration risk of the Portfolio is monitored by the AMPCI®"s Investment Manager on a regular basis. The
amount of the Sub-Fund exposure to each non-government issuer 1is limited to reduce the amount of
concentration risk for the Sub-Fund. In addition, AMPCI also use bottom up analysis to assess the credit
risks of each issuer.

The table below illustrates the Sub-Fund®s investments as classified by Security Type as at 31st May 2017 and
2016:

Security Type Market Value Market Value
2017 2016
Cash 1.36% 1.61%
Govt 20.24% 19.38%
Semi 16.68% 18.16%
Corporate 61.72% 60.85%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

Duration Contribution

AMPCI*s Investment Manager also uses the duration contribution of key risk factors to monitor the level of
market risk that the Sub-Fund is exposed to and the standard deviation analysis assesses the total volatility
of the Sub-Fund"s returns and the volatility of the excess return. The duration contribution analysis splits
the risk up into key risk factors, such as duration, yield curve and spread duration, broken down by credit
ratings, industry and sector. Various reports can be done looking at these metrics, both on a total portfolio
level and on the position versus benchmark.

Beta

Beta measures the sensitivity of the Sub-Fund return to the movement in the UBS Australian Composite Bond
Index. The average Beta for the Sub-Fund, for the 12 months up to 31st May 2017 is 0.99. This implies that a
1% movement in unit price of the UBS Australian Composite Bond Index is estimated to cause a 0.99% movement
in the unit price of the Sub-Fund. The average Beta for the Sub-Fund for 31st May 2016 was 1.00.

Using the beta model, a 1% increase in the benchmark, is forecasted to cause the NAV of the Sub-Fund to
increase from AUD52,679,947 to AUD53,203,749 and a 1% decrease in the benchmark would result in the NAV of
the Sub-Fund falling to AUD52,156,145. However, this estimate of NAV is inaccurate as it is using historic
beta. It would be better to just use beta as an indicator of the market risk of the Sub-Fund. The key
limitation of this model is that it uses historic beta. The Sub-Fund*s performance relative to the index will
change as a result of the change in Beta.

Standard deviation

Standard deviation is used by the Investment Manager to analyse the total risk of the Sub-Fund and the risk

versus bond (or tracking error). Both ex-post and ex-ante measures of risk are analysed.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Australian Bond Fund (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Standard deviation (continued)

The ex-post measure is calculated monthly, the ex-ante measure is calculated daily and is a one standard
deviation measure of expected risk, which measures the expected volatility (typically of the excess return)
if the current exposure was held constant over the next year.

Based on the analysis of volatility over the past twelve months, the Sub-Fund has a standard deviation of
2.99% for the year between 1st June 2016 and 31st May 2017, as compared to the benchmark standard deviation of
3.00% over this time period. The Tracking error for the excess return of the Sub-Fund against the benchmark
is 0.19% for the year ended 31st May 2017. The standard deviation for the Sub-Fund between 1st June 2015 and
31st May 2016 was 2.67%.

The ex-ante tracking error model breaks risk down into key risk factors, including: duration; yield curve (by
maturity bucket); credit by credit rating; swaps; semi-government bonds; inflation linked bonds; and high
yield. There is also a stock specific risk model which measures the risk at security level of a particular
security volatility versus its sector.

The Sub-Fund®s exposure to market risk refers to the securities as listed in the Schedule of Investments.

Interest rate risk

AMPCI*s investment managers closely monitor the potential changes to the Investment valuation as a result of
changes to the interest rate and yield curve movements. The AMPCI Investment Manager monitors both the
duration component (which relates to a parallel shift in interest rates) and a yield curve component (which
relates to a non-parallel shift in interest rates across the yield curve) of the interest rate.

The table overleaf is a scenarios analysis that shows the effect of parallel shifts in interest on the

performance of the Sub-Fund. The duration table as at 31st May 2016 is also included for comparative purposes.
The model below assumes a parallel shift in interest rates.
Estimated market values are calculated using duration as at 31st May 2017 and 2016. Subsequent changes to

duration, during the course of the year, will lead to inaccuracies in predication of the Sub-Fund"s market
value.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Australian Bond Fund (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31st May 2017

Fund Duration: 5.01
Benchmark Duration: 4.99

Bp Movement Portfolio Benchmark Outperformance
Mkt Value % Change Mkt Value % Change %

-50 53,998,756 2.50% 975,376,175,993 2.50% 0.00%
-25 53,339,351 1.25% 963,493,524,828 1.25% 0.00%

0 52,679,947 - 951,610,873,663 - -
25 52,020,543 -1.25% 939,728,222,498 -1.25% 0.00%
50 51,361,138 -2.50% 927,845,571,333 -2.50% 0.00%

As at 31st May 2016

Fund Duration: 4.85
Benchmark Duration: 4.83

Bp Movement Portfolio Benchmark Outperformance
Mkt Value % Change Mkt Value % Change %
-50 52,460,914 2.43% 938,164,037,190 2.42% 0.01%
-25 51,839,886 1.21% 927,102,834,486 1.21% 0.00%
0 51,218,857 - 916,041,631,782 - -
25 50,597,828 -1.21% 904,980,429,078 -1.21% 0.00%
50 49,976,800 -2.43% 893,919,226,375 -2.42% -0.01%

AMPCI*s investment managers constantly track the price sensitivity of their investment to basis point
movements in interest rates. This is compared with the price sensitivity of the benchmark. The interest rate
risk management process is based on the fixed interest rate team"s analysis of a number of econonmic,
valuations, market positioning and technical indicators. This allows AMPCI to recognise the potential themes

driving bond markets and position the portfolio accordingly.

The risk of a non parallel shift in interest rate curves, which includes the impact of changes in steepness
of the yield or the impact of a positive or negative butterfly shift in the yield is also accessed and
monitored by the Investment Manager.

The economic outlook for yields relies on analysis of work provided by internal and external strategists.

This includes interpretations of the level of domestic and global economic activity and inflation and the
resulting expectations for bond yields and curves.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Australian Bond Fund (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The bond market valuations reflect relatively traditional analysis for managing duration and yield curve
strategies. Output from the valuation process is expressed by AMPCI®"s in-house models of fair value for
Australian and global bond yields. The level of bond yields relative to implied short term rates and other

markets is also considered.

Extremes in market positioning are a potential driver of bond yields and yield curves with AMPCI®s research
suggesting a contrarian relationship between extreme investor positioning and the likely future path of
interest rates. AMPCI monitors a variety of positioning surveys and these are monitored when forming duration

and curve views.

Technical interpretation of the bond market based on historical price movement is utilised by the interest

rate team for position management purposes.

A portion of the analysis conducted involves the interpretation of issues affecting global bond markets and
not simply the Australian bond market. This is a reflection of the strong correlation of the Australian bond
market particularly with the US market. Inputs into the interest rate and currency team"s process have not
been static and have constantly evolved in recent years.

The ability to identify and take advantage of the themes that drive bond markets remains the primary

investment objective.

Liquidity risk
The Sub-Fund is a reasonably liquid investment and under normal market conditions, AMPCI expect to be able to
liquidate the entire Sub-Fund within 10 days.

The major liquidity issues faced by the Sub-Fund are determined by the volume of redemption request that
flows through to the Sub-Fund. The Sub-Fund keeps a portion of its investment in highly liquid asset class
such as Semi government bonds. The Investment Manager will monitor the total level of liquidity of the Sub-
Fund and also the Liquidity of the Sub-Fund vs. the benchmark.

All fixed interest investments are classified by the level of their liquidity. Assets that can be converted
to cash relatively quickly such as government securities and cash are classified as highly liquid. Assets
that are traded relatively frequently are classified as liquid assets and assets that will take a substantial

amount of time to convert to cash are considered illiquid assets.
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Liquidity risk (continued)
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The table below illustrates the Sub-Fund®s investments as classified by the level of liquidity as at 31st May

2017 and 2016:

Liquidity Market Value % Market Value %

Indicator 31st May 2017 31st May 2016
Highly 38.20% 39.20%
Liquid
Liquid 59.90% 58.90%
Traded 1.90% 1.90%
Iliquid 0.00% 0.00%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

The maturity profile of the Sub-Fund®s financial liabilities as at 31st May 2017 was:

Less than 1 month

Total
AUD

741,080

52,679,947

AUD
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year 741,080
Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units 52,679,947
Total Liabilities 53,421,027

53,421,027

The maturity profile of the Sub-Fund"s financial liabilities as at 31st May 2016 was:

Liabilities

376,274

51,218,857

Creditors - due within one year 376,274
Net Assets attributable to Holders of

Redeemable Participating Units 51,218,857
Total Liabilities 51,595,131

51,595,131

Credit risk
General Process for managing Credit risk

AMPCI has a dedicated Credit Market Team who is responsible for managing and monitoring credit risk in the

portfolio. The monitoring of credit risk is a vital component of the risk management process at AMPCI. The

three key credit risks monitored by the AMPCI investment manager include the risk of default by the credit

issuer, risk of an increase in credit spread and the risk of a downgrade in the credit rating by rating

agencies. The occurrence of any of those events will have a significant adverse effect on the prices of the

debt securities.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Australian Bond Fund (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

General Process for managing Credit risk (continued)

The AMPCI credit risk monitoring process combines top down analysis of the broader market and bottom up
analysis of each individual credit issuer. The top down analysis includes an overall assessment and forecast
for the global economy by the Investment Strategy and Economics team (ISET). This assessment provides the
framework for a forecast of economic growth, interest rates and the credit cycle. The Investment Manager then
assesses market conditions to determine credit duration and appropriate industry weightings. There is also a
decision about the weighting which AMPCI allocates to" higher grade” credit (e.g., that rated AAA by the
ratings agencies) versus‘ lower grade” credit (e.g., that rated BBB+). AMPCI look at factors such as the
supply of government bonds and credit, the relative prices of lower and higher rated credit, the credit cycle

and the overall economic and political environment.

The table below illustrates the percentage of the Sub-Fund®s investments in each category of credit ratings
vs. the benchmark as at 31st May 2017 and 2016:

Ratings from an international ratings agency

CreditRating Benchmark Portfolio Benchmark Portfolio
31st May 31st May 31st May 31st May
2017 2017 2016 2016

AAA 74.41% 37.52% 73.98% 39.72%
AA+ 7.28% 4.29% 8.05% 3.96%
AA 9.34% 12.23% 8.57% 11.22%
AA- 2.27% 5.69% 2.40% 5.89%
A+ 1.33% 5.88% 1.02% 4.09%
A 1.48% 11.92% 1.82% 12.46%
A- 1.82% 12.25% 1.66% 9.98%
BBB+ 0.88% 3.90% 1.23% 6.24%
BBB 0.90% 4.40% 0.89% 4.58%
BBB- 0.29% 0.00% 0.38% 0.00%
BB+ 0.00% 1.92% 0.00% 1.86%
Not Rated 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Australian Bond Fund (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

General Process for managing Credit risk (continued)

AMPCI*s Investment Managers also conduct extensive“ bottom up” analysis to access the risk profile of each
individual credit issuer. AMPCI*s significant credit specialist resources allow us to analyse and research a
large number of individual credit investments. This" bottom up” analysis is undertaken by AMPCI's credit
analysts who are allocated companies along industry lines and are responsible for making buy and sell
investment recommendations and taking a view on the outlook for their various industries. The Investment
Manager and credit analyst will then debate the various prospects of these companies and industries, which
then feeds into the individual investment and industry weighting decisions. The“ bottom up” process is broken
down into three steps:

1. Screen for suitable credits: This step draws on the industry knowledge of the credit analysts and the
output of an internally developed quantitative model. The aim of the process is to cut down the investment
universe and maximise time spent analysing those companies and industries which represent potential
investment opportunities.

2. Assess individual credit risk: Individual credit analysis aims to determine the likelihood that a company
will outperform or underperform the industry. Particular importance is given to the outlook on the company®s
cash flows, market position, operating efficiency, strategic direction and capital structure.

3. Evaluation of individual bonds: This involves bond valuation by the Investment Manager and focuses on the
relative merits of a security when compared with other securities issued by that company, its peers, or
intra-industry. The analysis takes into account the volatility of a security"s credit spread, liquidity,
entry and exit levels, covenant protection and optimal position on the credit curve.

Where the debt is unrated, the process is unchanged, with analysis concentrating on determining a company"s
financial and business position and then comparing it to others in its industry to determine its relative
creditworthiness. The ultimate decision to approve unrated issues for inclusion in the portfolio rests with
the Credit Investment Committee, which comprises directors and department heads of AMPCI.

Through the* top down” and“ bottom up” process, which are not mutually exclusive, the Investment Manager has
the tools to set the desired exposure to individual companies, industries and overall credit exposure of the
Sub-Fund.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a commitment that

it has entered into and cause the Sub-Fund to incur financial losses. The Sub-Fund is exposed to credit risk
on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement default.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Australian Bond Fund (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

General Process for managing Credit risk (continued)

SMT Trustees (lreland) Limited as Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited as its Custodian.
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited has, in turn, appointed BBH & Co. as their global sub-custodian. Both the
cash & securities are ultimately held at BBH & Co., with cash being held at BBH & Co. as Banker. The Sub-Fund
has elected to enter into a BBH & Co. sweep program which means that BBH & Co. will sweep cash into overnight
eligible bank counterparty accounts in order to diversify overnight exposure and/or to gain interest on the
various accounts. The Sub-Fund acknowledges that participation in the CMS program involves investment risks
(such as the loss of any balances swept) and it also accepts the sovereign and counterparty risks associated
with offshore overnight time deposits. The financial instruments of the Sub-Fund are segregated from the
assets of the other funds in the Fund and also from the proprietary assets of the Trustee, Custodian and
Global Sub-Custodian. The Fitch credit rating of BBH & Co. is A+ (2016: A+).

Credit Rating

Credit rating is extremely important in accessing the default risk of a fixed interest portfolio. The
Investment Manager monitors the total credit rating of the Sub-Fund®s holding against the Benchmark to assess
the tracking error of the Sub-Fund. The Sub-Fund does not invest in assets that are below investment grade
(although AMPCI may hold onto a security that is downgraded to sub investment grade).

Counterparty Risk
AMPCI deals with a wide range of brokers when we trade securities to help realisable counterparty risk. AMPCI
also requires trade confirmation by T+l in order to minimise the settlement risk of the trade.

Collateral

The majority of the Sub-Fund®s investment does not require significant collateral; however some collateral is
kept for the Sub-Funds for derivative exposures, specifically for 10 year and 3 year bond futures. As at 31st
May 2017, there was AUD43,739 (2016: AUD72,187) in futures margins with Macquarie Bank. The S&P Global
Ratings credit rating of Macquarie Bank is A (2016: A-).

Impaired Assets
The Sub-Fund does not have impaired assets.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Investment Manager also manages the concentration of credit risk, at both sector level and at the credit
issuer level. The AMPCI"s investment managers use innovative risk management software such as the Hawk Eye
consolidated report system to access the concentration of credit risk at each level of investment. The amount
of the Sub-Fund exposure to each non-government issuer is limited to reduce the amount of concentration risk

for the Sub-Fund. Geographically all investments are based in AUD.

Currency risk
For the year ended 31st May 2017, the Sub-Fund is not exposed to any currency exposure.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Euro Bond Fund

Financial risk management

The primary investment objective of the Sub-Fund is to pursue income gains in a stable manner and to seek long term
capital growth through investments primarily structured in a diversified portfolio of Euro denominated investment
grade fixed income products. The Sub-Fund®s benchmark is the Bloomberg Barclays Euro Aggregate Index.

The Sub-Fund®s assets and liabilities comprise financial instruments which include:

investments including fixed income securities that are held in accordance with the Sub-Fund"s investment
objective and policies;
cash and cash equivalents that arise directly from its investment activities: and
derivative transactions to manage the currency risks (e.g. foreign currency contracts) arising from the Sub-
Fund®s investment activities.

The main risks faced by the Sub-Fund are set out below along with a brief overview of how these risks are managed and
monitored by the Investment Manager in accordance with the investment mandate. The Sub-Fund®s activities expose it to
avariety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Sub-Fund®s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictabi lity of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Sub-
Fund®s financial performance.

Market price risk

The Sub-Fund trades in a variety of instruments including government bonds, supranational agencies” bonds and
corporate bonds which are listed or traded primarily on European and Recognised Exchanges. At least 50% of the Sub-
Fund®s Net Assets must be invested in high quality Euro denominated Government bonds. The Sub-Fund trades as well in
derivative contracts to manage currency risk arising from active investments. Further details on derivatives are
disclosed in Currency risk section.

The Sub-Fund may not make short sales of securities or maintain a short position.

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The Sub-Fund”s debt securities are susceptible to market
price risk arising from uncertainties about future prices of the instruments. The Investment Manager moderates this
risk through a careful selection of securities and other financial instruments within specified limits. The
construction of the portfolio operates within the overall risk control framework that is driven by the Sub-Fund
guidelines and the Sub-Fund®s overal I market positions are monitored on a daily basis by the Sub-Fund"s Investment
Manager .

The Sub-Fund is also defining risk by its deviation to expected performance versus the benchmark. The ex ante risk
budget for country/duration, currency, sector/security selection is pre-defined within the investment process of the
product. The Investment Manager monitors and reviews the Sub-Fund performance achieved against the benchmark and
performance objectives on a regular basis. Where relevant, they also review asset allocation and sector strategy for
consistency with house and team targets.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Euro Bond Fund (continued)

Market price risk (continued)

T. Rowe Price International Ltd, (* T. Rowe Price” ) Quantitative and Portfolio Analysis group provides an analysis
of the ex ante Sub-Fund risk, resulting from the Sub-Fund®s deviation from the benchmark (Tracking Error) on a regular
basis. These figures are calculated using appropriate risk management tools (for example Wilshire Axiom and Barclays
Capital Point) as well as in-house developments.

The Sub-Fund®s market risk is affected by the fol lowing main components: changes in actual market prices, interest
rate movements and foreign currency movements. Interest rate and foreign currency movements are covered in sections
below. The Sub-Fund”s exposure to market risk refers to the securities as listed in the Schedule of Investments.

Based on the analysis of performance return volatility over the past 12 months, the Euro Bond Fund has an annual ised
return standard deviation of 3.68%* for the year between 1st June 2016 and 31st May 2017, as compared to the benchmark

standard deviation of 3.71% over this time period.

I the Euro Bond market, as represented by the Bloomberg Barclays Euro Aggregate Index, at 31st May 2017 had increased
by 5% (including coupon payments) over the previous year, with all other variables held constant, this would have
increased Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units by approximately €226,532. This
figure is based on a NAV of €4,409,796° as at 31st May 2017 and its underlying historical beta of 1.0276. Conversely, if
the comparable benchmark index had decreased by 5%, this would have decreased the Net Assets attributable to Holders
of Redeemable Participating Units by approximately €226,532 based on the Sub-Fund®s Net Assets as at 31st May 2017.
This represents the Investment Manager*s view of a reasonable possible movement for a 12 month period based on current

market conditions.

Comparing to previous reporting year ended 31st May 2016, if the Euro Bond market, as represented by the Bloomberg
Barclays Euro Aggregate Index, at 31st May 2016 had increased by 5% (including coupon payments) over the previous year,
with all other variables held constant, this would have increased Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units by approximately €223,199. These figures are based on a NAV of €4,823,1917 as at 31st May 2016 and
its underlying historical beta 0.9268. Conversely, if the comparable benchmark index had decreased by 5%, this would
have decreased Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units by approximately €223,199 based
on the Sub-Fund"s Net Assets as of 31st May 2016.

4 Based on monthly performance data provided by T. Rowe Price.

5 Asset Valuations provided by SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited based on Valuation of Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.

6 Three year historical beta 1.027 - gross of fee fund performance vs. Bloomberg Barclays Euro Aggregate Index as end of year May 2017 (based on
monthly performance data provided by T. Rowe Price).

7 Asset Valuations provided by SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited based on Valuation of Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.

8 Three year historical beta 0.926 - gross of fee fund performance vs. Bloomberg Barclays Euro Aggregate Index as end of May 2016 (based on

monthly performance data provided by T. Rowe Price).
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Euro Bond Fund (continued)

Market price risk (continued)

This represents the Investment Manager”s view of a reasonable possible movement for a 12 month period based on current
market conditions. The limitation of a beta coefficient analysis is mainly due to its backward looking process. The
Sub-Fund defines risk by its deviation to expected performance versus the benchmark, the Investment Manager
calculates on a regular basis the ex-ante tracking error for the Sub-Fund. Tracking error risk is produced by
positioning the portfolio differently than the benchmark (e.g. curve, sector, or issue selection bets). Despite its
usefulness for investment managers, the tracking error suffers from some limitations too. Tracking error assumes a
normal return distribution. As being shown by recent publications, return distributions are not normal and therefore,
using tracking error can be misleading.

Interest rate risk

The majority of the Sub-Fund®s financial assets and liabilities are interest bearing. As a result, the Sub-Fund is
subject to significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates. Interest
rate risk is the risk resulting of changes in the level of interest rates, in the slope of the yield curve, in the shape
of the yield curve, or in any other interest rate relationship.

Interest rates are determined by fundamental and technical factors that are driving demand and supply in
international fixed income and money markets. The Sub-Fund®s interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities
expose It to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its

financial position and cash flows.

The interest rate risk is managed on a relative basis versus the benchmark. Interest rate exposure reports are
available to the Sub-Fund"s Investment Manager on a daily basis. Interest rate exposure is shown by duration breakdown
and deviation from the benchmark detailed per maturity bucket, country and currency. Other reports, such as a
breakdown and deviation by rating and sector are available to the Sub-Fund"s Investment Manager as well. The
portfolio/benchmark deviation is also compared to the Sub-Fund®s model portfolio.

Based on underlying holdings and market data as at 31st May 2017, an incremental impact of a parallel shifto in the yield
curve of plus 50 basis points with all other variables remaining constant would result in a decrease in the Net Assets
attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units by approximately 3.3% immediately, equivalent to €144,237
in bond price depreciation based on the Sub-Fund"s Net Assets of €4,409, 79610 and the Sub-Fund"s effective duration of
6.54!1 as at 31st May 2017.

9 Aparallel shift in the yield curve refers to a shift inwhich the change in the yield on all bond maturities is the same.
10 Asset Valuations provided by SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited based on Valuation of Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.

11 Modified duration provided by T. Rowe Price.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Euro Bond Fund (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Based on underlying holdings and market data as at 31st May 2016, an incremental impact of a parallel shift!? in the
yield curve of plus 50 basis points with all other variables remaining constant would result in a decrease in the Net
Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units by approximately 3.2% immediately, equivalent to €
156,271 in bond price depreciation based on the Sub-Fund*s Net Assets of €4,823,19113 and the Sub-Fund*s effective
duration of 6.48%4 as at 31st May 2016. The incremental impact of a yield curve shift by minus 50 basis points would be an

increase in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units by approximately 3.2% immediately.

See table below for further information as at 31st May 2017:

Incremental Impact on NAV (as of 31st May 2017)

- - Incremental Impact on Equivalent in
Yield Curve Shift Market Value EURD
+ 50 Basis points -3.3% -144,237
+ 100 Basis points -6.5% -288,474
- 50 Basis points +3.3% 144,237
- 100 Basis points +6.5% 288,474

Please also see below the incremental impact on the NAV as at 31st May 2016 using the same underlying yield curve shift
assumption, but with an effective duration of 6.48 as at 31st May 2016 and with Sub-Fund"s Net Assets of €4,823,19115.

Incremental Impact on NAV (as of 31st May 2016)

_ - Incremental Impact on Equivalent in
Yield Curve Shift Varket Value EURO
+50 Basis points -3.2% -156,271
+100 Basis points -6.5% -312,543
- 50 Basis points +3.2% 156,271
- 100 Basis points +6.5% 312,543

12 p parallel shift in the yield curve refers to a shift inwhich the change in the yield on all bond maturities is the same.
13 Asset Valuations provided by SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited based on Valuation of Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.
14 Modified duration provided by T. Rowe Price.

15 Asset Valuations provided by SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited based on Valuation of Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Euro Bond Fund (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

There are limitations for using a single duration number to capture the risk inherited in abond portfolio. While
effective duration is a critical tool in portfolio analysis and risk management, it is important to recognise that
this single duration number is an estimate of a bond*s sensitivity to a parallel shift in interest rates. While
effective duration is useful and convenient for many purposes, robust risk management requires the Investment Manager
to recognise that although changes in interest rates are often highly correlated across the curve, in reality the
slope and shape of the yield curve changes over time.

In accordance with the Sub-Fund”"s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Sub-Fund®s overall interest

sensitivity on adaily basis.

Credit risk/Counterparty risk

Fixed income assets, including government bonds by developed countries, are exposed to credit risk. The Sub-Fund
takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty or issuer will be unable to pay amounts in full
when due. Credit research is general ly defined by sector-specific investment grade (corporate bond market) analysis.

Within the investment process the Investment Management team focuses on rigorous credit research to identify
investment opportunities within the Sub-Fund"s investment universe. The investment decision is based on financial
statement analysis and discussion with company management. Credit analysts cover their industries closely and are
responsible for monitoring all holdings in the portfolio, issuers in the benchmark and issuers the Investment Manager
does not own but might consider owning.

The Sub-Fund®s guideline requires that investments must be rated BBB-/Baa3 or higher by S&P Global Ratings or Moody"s.
The average weighted rating of the Sub-Fund is maintained at AA-/Aa3 or higher and a maximum of 10% of the Sub-Fund"s

NAV may be invested in securities rated BBB-/Baa3.

Sub-Fund Break Down by Rating Category (as of 31st May 2017)

CreditRating (wpeoiz]thi:) : :1(3/0) (we ilgnhdte ) Di?ﬁi%” *
AAA 28.95 25.86 3.09
AA 29.85 31.04 -1.19
A 14.15 10.36 3.79
BAA 24.30 32.74 _8.44
Cash 2.75 0.00 2.75

100.00% 100.00%
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Euro Bond Fund (continued)

Credit risk/Counterparty risk (continued)
Sub-Fund Break Down by Rating Category (as of 31st May 2016)

CreditRating (\:eoil;]tkl]ctC) : riﬁm) (we ilgnhdf i) Dif(ﬁﬁ/f; *
AAA 24.97 26.39 _1.42
AA 30.53 30.97 ~0.44
A 12.10 10.16 1.94
BAA 30.43 32.48 2.05
Cash 1.97 0.00 1.97

100.00% 100.00%

The Sub-Fund®s main credit risk concentration is held with debt securities. The Sub-Fund may not hold more than 10% of
any class of security issued by any single issuer and a maximum of 5% of the Sub-Fund®s Net Assets can be invested in the
securities of a single corporate issuer at the time of obtaining the assets.

The credit concentration is monitored on a daily basis by the portfolio management and by the credit analysis team.
Credit exposure can be monitored by customised requirements and criteria. Detailed breakdown and exposure reports
such as Sector/Rating, Sector/Duration and Issuer and Industry reports are available and are monitored on a regular
basis.

The credit risk associated with counterparty risk is limited. Counterparty risk is the risk that a counterparty will
be unable or unwilling to meet a commitment that it has entered into and cause financial losses to the Sub-Fund. All
Sub-Fund transactions are completed and settled using approved brokers with a 3 to 5 day settlement period. The risk of
settlement default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received
payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if
either party fails tomeet its obligation.

On a regular basis the Investment Manager runs counterparty risk exposure reports on the Sub-Fund*"s FX-Forward
position. These reports are designed to limit the risk associated with a default of the counterparty. All foreign
exchanges and foreign exchange forward contracts are executed with BBH & Col6.

The Sub-Fund is exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement default.
The Investment Manager minimises counterparty risk on the Sub-Fund by only deal ing with counterparties which have
been prior approved by the AIFM.

16 A1l FX transactions are executed with the sub-custodian BBH & Co.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Euro Bond Fund (continued)

Credit risk/Counterparty risk (continued)
As per the Investment Prospectus, the counterparties must meet the fol lowing requirements:

a) the counterparty must have Unitholders® funds in excess of €125 million or equivalent in foreign currency;

b) the name of the counterparty is disclosed in the half-yearly/annual report issued by the Sub-Fund;

c) the Investment Manager is satisfied that the counterparty has agreed to value the transaction at least weekly and
will close out the transaction at the request of the Manager at a fair value; and

d) initial outlay in respect to OTC derivatives to any one counterparty must not exceed 5% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.

SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited as Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited as its Custodian. Sumitomo
Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited has, in turn, appointed BBH & Co. as their global sub-custodian. Both the cash & securities
are ultimately held at BBH & Co. , with cash being held at BBH & Co. as Banker. The Sub-Fund has elected to enter into a
BBH & Co. sweep program which means that BBH & Co. will sweep cash into overnight eligible bank counterparty accounts
in order to diversify overnight exposure and/or to gain interest on the various accounts. The Sub-Fund acknowledges
that participation in the CMS program involves investment risks (such as the loss of any balances swept) and it also
accepts the sovereign and counterparty risks associated with offshore overnight time deposits. The physical assets of
the Sub-Fund are segregated from the assets of the other funds in the Fund and also from the proprietary assets of the
Trustee, Custodian and Global Sub-Custodian. The credit rating of BBH & Co. is A+ rating from Fitch (2016: A+).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk in general represents the risk that the Sub-Fund cannot meet or generate sufficient cash resources to
meet its payment obligations in full as they fall due, or can only do so on materially disadvantageous terms. Liquidity
risk can apply as well if a particular security or derivative position cannot be easily unwound or offset due to
insufficient market depth or market disruption.

The Sub-Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions of Redeemable Participating Units. The Sub-Fund®s securities are
readily realisable (T+2) as they are listed on European and Recognised Exchanges. The Sub-Fund doesn"t hold any
illiquid securities.

The Sub-Fund has the ability to borrow in the short term to ensure settlement (borrowing must not exceed 10% of NAV of
the Sub-Fund). No such borrowings have arisen during the year. Although futures and options are permissible, the Sub-
Fund does not invest in these types of securities as at 31st May 2017 and 2016. Foreign exchange forwards are limited to
be permitted in order to hedge the assets of the Sub-Fund. In accordance with the Sub-Fund®s policy, the Investment
Manager monitors the Sub-Fund®s liquidity position on adaily basis.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Euro Bond Fund (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Sub-Fund®s financial liabilities as at 31st May 2017 was:

Less than 1 month Total
EUR EUR
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year 68,805 68,805
Net A_ss_ets gttrlb_utable to Holders of Redeemable 4,409,796 4,409,796
Participating Units
Total Liabilities 4,478,601 4,478,601

The maturity profile of the Sub-Fund®s financial liabilities as at 31st May 2016 was:
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year 45,715 45,715

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profitor loss 954 954
Net /-\_ss_ets fflttrlb_utable to Holders of Redeemable 4,823,191 4,823,191
Participating Units

Total Liabilities 4,869,860 4,869,860

Currency risk

The Sub-Fund is exposed to currency risk as it holds assets denominated in currencies other than Euro. The value of
securities denominated in other currencies will fluctuate with changes in exchange rates. The Sub-Fund utilised
forward currency contracts to hedge non-base currency exposures.

Investments in European currencies and assets denominated in currencies other than Euro are limited to 15% of the Sub-
Fund®s NAV at time of purchase and hedging back to euro through currency forwards and options is permitted.

As at 31st May 2017, the Sub-Fund was engaged in active currency decision via short dated Government bonds (T-Bills) in

various currencies. Currency fluctuations might impact Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Euro Bond Fund (continued)

Currency risk (continued)
Portfolio by Currency Break Down (%) (As at 31st May 2017)

currency Po_rtfo! io 1 nde>_< Difference
(weight in %) (weight in %) (in%)
Euro 99.98 100.00 -0.02
Danish Krone 0.02 0.00 0.02
100.00 100.00
Portfolio by Currency Break Down (%) (As at 31st May 2016)
currency Po_rtfo! io _I nde>_< Diff_erence
(weight in %) (weight in %) (in%)
Euro 99.00 100.00 -1.00
Japanese Yen 0.82 0.00 0.82
Danish Krone 0.11 0.00 0.11
Pounds Sterling 0.04 0.00 0.04
Poland Zloty 0.02 0.00 0.02
Swedish Krona 0.01 0.00 0.01
100.00 100.00

In accordance with the Sub-Fund®s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Sub-Fund®s currency positionon adaily
basis.

The currency exposure of the Sub-Fund can be found on page 90.

Canada Bond Fund

Financial risk management

The primary investment objective of the Sub-Fund is to pursue income gains in a stable manner and to seek long term
capital growth through investing in investment grade fixed income products denominated in Canadian Dollars. The Sub-
Fund®s benchmark is the Bloomberg Barclays Canadian Issues: 300MM Index.

The Sub-Fund”s assets and liabilities comprise financial instruments which include:

investments including fixed income securities that are held in accordance with the Sub-Fund"s investment
objective and policies;
cash and cash equivalents that arise directly from its investment activities.

The Sub-Fund®s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (fair value interest rate risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Sub-Fund*s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Sub-Fund*s financial performance.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Canada Bond Fund (continued)

Market price risk

The Sub-Fund trades in a variety of instruments including government bonds, supranational agencies® bonds, corporate
bonds, bonds issued by the governments of the Canadian provinces or asset-backed securities listed or traded
primarily on a Recognised Exchange and/or domestic Canadian bonds traded on a Recognised Exchange. At least 50% of the
Sub-Fund®s Net Assets must be invested in high qual ity Canadian Government bonds.

The Sub-Fund may not make short sales of securities or maintain a short position.

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The Sub-Fund®s debt securities are susceptible to market
price risk arising from uncertainties about future prices of the instruments. The Investment Manager moderates this
risk through a careful selection of securities and other financial instruments within specified limits. The
construction of the portfolio operates within the overall risk control framework that is driven by the Sub-Fund
guidelines and the Sub-Fund®s overall market positions are monitored on a daily basis by the Sub-Fund"s Investment

Manager .

The Sub-Fund defines risk by its deviation to expected performance versus the benchmark. The ex ante risk budget for
country/duration and sector/security selection is pre-defined within the investment process of the product. The
Investment Manager monitors and reviews Sub-Fund performance achieved against the benchmark and performance
objectives on a regular basis. Where relevant, they also review asset allocation and sector strategy for consistency
with house and team targets.

T. Rowe Price Quantitative and Portfolio Analysis group provides an analysis of the ex ante Sub-Fund risk, resulting
from the Sub-Fund®s deviation from the benchmark (Tracking Error) on a regular basis. These figures are calculated
using appropriate risk management tools (for example Wilshire Axiom and Barclays Capital Point) as well as in-house

developments.

The Sub-Fund®s market risk is affected by following main components: changes in actual market prices and interest rate
movements. Interest rate movements are covered in sections below. The Sub-Fund®s exposure to market risk refers to the
securities as listed in the Schedule of Investments.

Based on the analysis of performance return volatility over the past 12 months, the Canada Bond Fund has an annualised
return standard deviation of 3.66% for the year between 1st June 2016 and 31st May 2017, as compared to the benchmark
standard deviation of 3.82% over this time period.

I the Canadian bond market, as represented by the Bloomberg Barclays Canadian Issues: 300MM Index, at 31st May 2017
had increased by 5% (including coupon payments) over the previous year, with all other variables held constant, this
would have increased Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units by approximately
CAD898,084. These figures are based on a NAV of CAD20,446,29317 as of 31st May 2017 and its underlying historical beta of
0.87818. Conversely, if the comparable benchmark index had decreased by 5%, this would have decreased Net Assets
attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units by approximately CAD898,084 based on the Sub-Fund®s Net
Assets as at 31st May 2017.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Canada Bond Fund (continued)

Market price risk (continued)

Comparing to previous reporting year ended 31st May 2016, if the Canadian bond market, as represented by the Bloomberg
Barclays Canadian Issues: 300MM Index, at 31st May 2016 had increased by 5% (including coupon payments) over the
previous year, with all other variables held constant, this would have increased Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units by approximately CAD1,254,903. These figures are based on a NAV of CAD22,527,50219 as
at 31st May 2016 and its underlying historical beta 1.11420. Conversely, if the comparable benchmark index had
decreased by 5%, this would have decreased Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units by
approximately CAD1,254,903 based on the Sub-Fund”s Net Assets as at 31st May 2016.

The limitation of a beta coefficient analysis is mainly due to its backward looking process. The Sub-Fund defines risk
by its deviation to expected performance versus the benchmark, the Investment Manager calculates on a regular basis
the ex-ante tracking error for the Sub-Fund.

17 Asset Valuations provided by SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited based on Valuation of Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.

18 Three year historical beta 0.878 - gross of fee fund performance vs. Bloomberg Barclays Canadian Issues: 300MM Index as at 315t May 2017
(based on monthly performance data provided by T. Rowe Price).

19 Asset Valuations provided by SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited based on Valuation of Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.

20 Three year historical beta 1.114 - gross of fee fund performance vs. Bloomberg Barclays Canadian Issues: 300MM Index as at 315t May 2016

(based on monthly performance data provided by T. Rowe Price).

Tracking error risk is produced by positioning the portfolio differently than the benchmark (e.g. curve, sector, or
issue selection bets). Despite its usefulness for investment managers, the Tracking error suffers from some
limitations too. Tracking error assumes a normal return distribution. As being showed by recent publications, return

distributions are not normal and therefore, using tracking error can be misleading.

Interest rate risk

The majority of the Sub-Fund"s financial assets and liabilities are interest bearing. As a result, the Sub-Fund is
subject to significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates. Interest
rate risk is the risk resulting from changes in the level of interest rates, in the slope of the yield curve, in the

shape of the yield curve, or in any other interest rate relationship.

Interest rates are determined by fundamental and technical factors that are driving demand and supply in
international fixed income and money markets. The Sub-Fund®s interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities
expose it to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its
financial position and cash flows.

The interest rate risk is managed on a relative basis versus the benchmark. Interest rate exposure reports are

avai lable to the Investment Manager on a daily basis. Interest rate exposure is shown by duration breakdown and

deviation from the benchmark detailed per maturity buckets.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Canada Bond Fund (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Other reports, such as a breakdown and deviation by rating and sector are available to the Sub-Fund®s Investment
Manager as well. The portfolio/benchmark deviation is as well compared to the Sub-Fund®s model portfolio.

Based on underlying holdings and market data as of 31st May 2017, an incremental impact of a parallel shift2! in the
yield curve of plus 50 basis points with all other variables remaining constant would result in a decrease in the Net
Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units by approximately 3.7% immediately, equivalent to
CAD752,934 in bond price depreciation based on the Sub-Fund®s Net Assets of CAD20,446,29322 and the Sub-Fund"s
effective duration of 7.36 as of 31st May 2017.

The incremental impact of a yield curve shift by minus 50 basis points would be an increase in Net Assets attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units by approximately 3.7% immediately. See table overleaf for further
information as at 31st May 2017.

21 Aparallel shift in the yield curve refers to a shift in which the change in the yield on all bond maturities is the same.

22 psset Valuations provided by SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited based on Valuation of Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.

Incremental Impact on NAV (as of 31st May 2017)

- - Incremental Impact on Equivalent in
Yield Curve Shift Market Value Canadian Dol lar
+50 Basis points -3.7% -752,934
+ 100 Basis points -7.4% -1,505,868
- 50 Basis points +3.7% 752,934
- 100 Basis points +7.4% 1,505,868

Please find below as well the incremental impact on the NAV as at 31st May 2016 using the same underlying yield curve
shift assumption with the Sub-Fund"s effective duration of 7.09 as at 31st May 2016. The Sub-Fund®s NAV as at 31st May
2016 was CAD22,527,50223.

Incremental Impact on NAV (as of 31st May 2016)

- - Incremental Impact on Equivalent in
Yield Curve shift Market Value Canadian Dollar
+ 50 Basis points -3.6% -799,726
+ 100 Basis points -7.1% -1,597,200
- 50 Basis points +3.6% 799,726
- 100 Basis points +7.1% 1,597,200
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Canada Bond Fund (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

There are limitations for using a single duration number to capture the risk inherited in abond portfolio. While
effective duration is a critical tool in portfolio analysis and risk management, it is important to recognise that
this single duration number is an estimate of a bond*s sensitivity to a parallel shift in interest rates. While
effective duration is useful and convenient for many purposes, robust risk management requires us to recognise that
although changes in interest rates are often highly correlated across the curve, in reality the slope and shape of the

yield curve changes over time.

In accordance with the Sub-Fund”"s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Sub-Fund®s overall interest

sensitivity on adaily basis.

Credit risk/Counterparty risk

Fixed income assets, including government bonds by developed countries, are exposed to credit risk. The Sub-Fund
takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty or issuer will be unable to pay amounts in full
when due. Credit research is general ly defined by sector-specific investment grade (corporate bond market) analysis.

23 Asset Valuations provided by SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited based on Valuation of Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.

Within the investment process the Investment Manager focuses on a rigorous credit research to identify investment
opportunities within the Sub-Fund"s investment universe. The investment decision is based on financial statement
analysis and discussion with company management. Credit analysts cover their industries closely and are responsible
for monitoring all holdings in the portfolio, issuers in the benchmark and issuers the Sub-Fund does not own but might

consider owning.

The Sub-Fund®s guideline requires that investments must be rated BBB-/Baa3 or higher by an international rating
agency. The average weighted rating of the Sub-Fund is maintained at AA-/Aa3 or higher and a maximum of 10% of the Sub-
Fund®s NAV may be invested in securities rated BBB-/Baa3. At least 50% of the Sub-Fund is invested in high quality
Canadian dollar denominated government bonds, rated no lower than A/A2 by an international rating agency.

Sub-Fund Break Down by Rating Category (as of 31st May 2017)

Credit Rating (wpeoi';;thfto : riﬁ/o (we ilgnhdf ) Dif(]:?]ro;f; Ce

AAA 54.85 45.25 9.60

AA 21.15 37.43 -16.28

A 14.02 9.05 4.97

BAA 8.74 8.27 0.47

Cash* 1.24 0.00 1.24
100.00 100.00

* No cash overdrawn on settlement basis, amid coupon payment anticipation.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Canada Bond Fund (continued)

Credit risk/Counterparty risk (continued)
Sub-Fund Break Down by Rating Category (as of 31st May 2016)

CreditRating (mfeoigtr]?:ri]c;m) (weilgnhdf in%) Dif(ﬁﬁ/f; *
AAA 50.34 46.08 4.26
AA 20.89 36.80 _15.91
A 19.92 9.30 10.62
BAA 5.43 7.82 -2.39
BA 1.00 0.00 1.00
Cash* 2.4 0.00 2.42
100.00 100.00

* No cash overdrawn on settlement basis, amid coupon payment anticipation.

The Sub-Fund*®s main credit risk concentration is held with debt securities. No more than 5% of the Sub-Fund®s NAV can
be invested in the securities of a single corporate issuer, excluding governments, at the time of obtaining the
assets. Additionally, a maximum of 20% of the Sub-Fund may be invested in securities issued or guaranteed by any of the
provincial governments of Canada.

The credit concentration is monitored on a daily basis by the portfolio management and by the credit analysis team.
Credit exposure can be monitored by customised requirements and criteria. Detailed breakdown and exposure reports
such as Sector/Rating, Sector/Duration and Issuer and Industry reports are available and are monitored on a regular
basis.

The credit risk associated with counterparty risk is limited. Counterparty risk is the risk that a counterparty will
be unable or unwilling to meet a commitment that it has entered into and cause financial losses to the Sub-Fund. All
Sub-Fund transactions are completed and settled using approved brokers with a 3 to 5 day settlement period. The risk of
settlement default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received
payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if
either party fails tomeet its obligation.

The Sub-Fund is exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement default.
The Investment Manager minimises counterparty risk on the Sub-Fund by only dealing with counterparties which have

been prior approved by the AIFM. As per the Prospectus, the counterparties must meet the following requirements:

a) the counterparty must have Unitholders® funds in excess of EUR125 million or equivalent in foreign currency;

b) the name of the counterparty is disclosed in the half-yearly/annual report issued by the Sub-Fund;

¢) the Investment Manager is satisfied that the counterparty has agreed to value the transaction at least weekly and
will close out the transaction at the request of the Manager at a fair value; and

d) initial outlay in respect to OTC derivatives to any one counterparty must not exceed 5% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Canada Bond Fund (continued)

Credit risk/Counterparty risk (continued)

SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited as Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited as its Custodian. Sumitomo
Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited has, in turn, appointed BBH & Co. as their global sub-custodian. Both the cash & securities
are ultimately held at BBH & Co., with cash being held at BBH & Co. as Banker. The Sub-Fund has elected to enter into a
BBH & Co. sweep program which means that BBH & Co. will sweep cash into overnight eligible bank counterparty accounts
in order to diversify overnight exposure and/or to gain interest on the various accounts. The Sub-Fund acknowledges
that participation in the CMS program involves investment risks (such as the loss of any balances swept) and it also
accepts the sovereign and counterparty risks associated with offshore overnight time deposits. The physical assets of
the Sub-Fund are segregated from the assets of the other funds in the Fund and also from the proprietary assets of the
Trustee, Custodian and Global Sub-Custodian. The credit rating of BBH & Co. is A+ rating from Fitch (2016: A+).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk in general represents the risk that the Sub-Fund cannot meet or generate sufficient cash resources to
meet its payment obligations in full as they fall due, or can only do so at materially disadvantageous terms. Liquidity
risk can apply as well if a particular security or derivative position cannot be easily unwound or offset due to
insufficient market depth or market disruption.

The Sub-Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions of Redeemable Participating Units, but is not obliged to any
restrictions regarding cash flows. The Sub-Fund"s securities are readily realisable (T+2) as they are listed on
Recognised Exchanges. The Sub-Fund doesn®t hold any illiquid securities.

The Sub-Fund has the ability to borrow in the short term to ensure settlement (borrowing must not exceed 10% of NAV of
the Sub-Fund). No such borrowings have arisen during the year. Although futures and options are permissible, the Sub-
Fund does not invest in these types of securities as at 31st May 2017 and 2016. In accordance with the Sub-Fund®s
policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Sub-Fund®s liquidity position onadaily basis.

The maturity profile of the Sub-Fund®s financial liabilities as at 31st May 2017 was:
Less than 1 month Total
CAD CAD
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year 909,059 909,059

Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable

Participating Units 20,446,293 20,446,293

Total Liabilities 21,355,352 21,355,352
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RISK FACTORS (continued)

Canada Bond Fund (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Sub-Fund®s financial liabilities as at 31st May 2016 was:

Less than 1 month Total
CAD CAD
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year 77,864 77,864
Net A_ss_ets gttrlb_utable to Holders of Redeemable 22,527,502 22,527,502
Participating Units
Total Liabilities 22,605,366 22,605,366

Currency risk
The currency exposure of all the Sub-Funds® investments and cash are as follows:

Euro Bond Fund 2017 2016

EUR EUR
Danish Krone 135,951 131,927
Polish Zloty - 96,182
Pound Sterling 2 2
Swedish Krona 102,460 125,724
Total 238,413 353,835
Canada Bond Fund CAD CAD
Euro - 3,589
Total - 3,589
US Preferred Securities Fund Us$ uss$
Euro 27,884 21,578
Japanese Yen 1,206 1,202
Total 29,090 22,780

CASH INCLUDING FOREIGN CURRENCY
Cash balances are held with BBH & Co. and margin cash in Australian Bond Fund AUD43,739 (2016: AUD72,187) is held with

Macquarie Bank Limited, Australia. Margin cash on futures contracts may be subject to withdrawal restrictions until
such time as the Sub-Fund closes these positions.
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DEBTORS

EUR AUD CAD us$
Interest receivable - 192 39 267
Receivable for fund units sold - 17,820 - -
Receivables for investments sold - - - -
Other assets - - 32,628 -
As at 31st May 2017 - 18,012 32,667 267
Interest receivable - 529 13 21
Receivable for fund units sold - 18,486 - -
Receivables for investments sold - - - -
Other assets 4 - 37,983 -
As at 31st May 2016 4 19,015 37,996 21
CREDITORS - due within one year

EUR AUD CAD Uss
Interest payable 37 - - 14
Payable for fund units repurchased - 41,856 52,622 39,150
Payable for investments purchased 12,178 327,337 766,414 -
Provision for fees payable (Note 9) 51,832 153,822 90,023 84,249
Dividend distributions payable 4,758 218,065 - 46,036
As at 31st May 2017 68,805 741,080 909,059 169,449
Interest payable 17 - 2 10
Payable for fund units repurchased - 25,595 2,132 14,171
Payable for investments purchased - - - -
Provision for fees payable (Note 9) 40,703 145,044 75,730 64,098
Dividend distributions payable 4,995 205,635 - 66,415
As at 31st May 2016 45,715 376,274 77,864 144,694
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REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS ISSUED AND REDEEMED DURING THE YEAR

US Preferred
Securities
Fund

Euro Bond Australian Canada Bond
t
31st May 2017 Fund Bond Fund Fund

Number of Units outstanding as at beginning of the 454,090 5,014,380 2,211,760 3,320,160

year
Number of Units issued 11,050 872,730 19,140 123,130
Number of Units redeemed (32,570) (566,660) (175,570) (379,230)
Number of Units outstanding as at end of the year 432,570 5,320,450 2,055,330 3,064,060

31st May 2016

Number of Units outstanding as at beginning of the 515,860 5,755,650 2,607,210 3,793,820

year
Number of Units issued 138,050 556,210 66,280 135,370
Number of Units redeemed (199,820)  (1,297,480) (461,730) (609,030)
Number of Units outstanding as at end of the year 454,090 5,014,380 2,211,760 3,320,160
FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Sub-Fund pays the AIFM a monthly fee, accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears, at an annual rate as fol lows:

Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund and Monthly Dividend Australian Bond Fund at an annual rate of 0.60% of the NAV.

Monthly Dividend Canada Bond Fund
NAV equal to or less than CAD100,000,000: 0.61%
NAV greater than CAD100,000,000: 0.67%

Monthly Dividend US Preferred Securities Fund

NAV equal to or less than US$100,000,000: 0.60%

NAV greater than US$100,000,000 and less than US$500,000,000: 0.61%
NAV greater than US$500,000,000 and less than US$1,000,000,000: 0.66%
NAV greater than US$1,000,000,000: 0.71%

The AIFM pays out of its own fee the fees of the Distributor and Agent Company. The Agent Company receives a fee at an
annual rate of 0.10% and the Distributor receives the balance.
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FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

The AIFM also receives out of the assets of each Sub-Fund an annual administration fee, accrued daily and payable
monthly in arrears as fol lows:

Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund

NAV less than €100,000,000: 0.13%

NAV greater than €100,000,000 and less than €1,000,000,000: 0.115%
NAV greater than €1,000,000,000: 0.10%

Monthly Dividend Australian Bond Fund

NAV less than AUD200,000,000: 0.13%

NAV greater than AUD200,000,000 and less than AUD1,000,000,000: 0.115%
NAV greater than AUD1,000,000,000: 0.10%

Monthly Dividend Canada Bond Fund
NAV equal to or less than CAD100,000,000: 0.12%
NAV greater than CAD100,000,000: 0.11%

Monthly Dividend US Preferred Securities Fund
NAV equal to or less than US$100,000,000: 0.11%
NAV greater than US$100,000,000: 0.10%

The AIFM pays the Depositary out of the assets of each Sub-Fund an annual fee, accrued daily and payable monthly in
arrears, at a rate of 0.06% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund. The Depositary is entitled to be repaid out of the assets of the
Sub-Fund any out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the performance of its duties.

The AIFM pays out of the assets of the Sub-Fund an annual fee to the Investment Manager, based on the Sub-Fund®s NAV,
accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears as follows:

Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund

NAV less than €250,000,000: 0.50%

NAV greater than €250,000,000 and less than €500,000,000: 0.45%
NAV greater than €500,000,000: 0.40%

Monthly Dividend Australian Bond Fund

NAV less than AUD500,000,000: 0.50%

NAV greater than AUD500,000,000 and less than AUD1,000,000,000: 0.45%
NAV greater than AUD1,000,000,000: 0.40%

Monthly Dividend Canada Bond Fund
NAV equal to or less than CAD100,000,000: 0.50%
NAV greater than CAD100,000,000: 0.45%

Monthly Dividend US Preferred Securities Fund

NAV equal to or less US$500,000,000: 0.60%

NAV greater than US$500,000,000 and less than US$1,000,000,000: 0.55%
NAV greater than US$1,000,000,000: 0.50%
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FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

The Investment Manager out of its fee pays any Investment Adviser appointed by the Investment Manager with the
approval of the AIFM.

The AIFM is entitled to be repaid all of its administration expenses in relation to each Sub-Fund, out of the assets of
each Sub-Fund, which includes printing fees, audit fees, legal fees, courier’s fees, reasonable travel expenses of
the Investment Manager and telecommunication costs and expenses. Investors are advised that the total of all such
expenses, which will be charged at normal commercial rates, may constitute a significant charge to each Sub-Fund.

The fees payable are as fol lows:

EUR AUD CAD us$
Trustee fees 228 2,675 1,056 1,227
Distributor fees 1,911 22,282 8,889 10,224
Agent Company fees 364 4,454 1,735 2,044
Investment Manager fees 1,147 22,288 5,238 12,268
Investment Adviser fees 748 - 3,471 -
Administration fees 493 5,795 2,112 2,249
Sub-custody expenses 464 1,321 - 575
Audit fees 3,268 33,247 15,764 17,053
Other expenses 43,209 61,760 51,758 38,609
As at 31st May 2017 51,832 153,822 90,023 84,249
Trustee fees 244 2,600 1,139 1,294
Distributor fees 2,035 21,784 9,701 10,786
Agent Company fees 409 4,355 1,905 2,153
Investment Manager fees 1,219 21,783 5,683 12,939
Investment Adviser fees 818 - 3,811 -
Administration fees 530 5,632 2,278 2,372
Sub-custody expenses 389 1,749 - 840
Audit fees 3,232 34,320 15,095 17,032
Other expenses 31,827 52,821 36,118 16,682
As at 31st May 2016 40,703 145,044 75,730 64,098
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The net gain on investment activities for the year ended 31st May 2017 is as follows:

Net realised gain from:
- Investments and currencies
- Futures contracts

- Forward currency contracts

Net realised loss from:
- Investments and currencies
- Futures contracts

- Forward currency contracts

Net change in unrealised gain from:

- Investments and currencies

- Forward currency contracts

Net change in unrealised loss from:

- Investments and currencies
Dividend income
Dividend expense
Interest income
Net income equalisation
Net expense equalisation

Net capital equalisation

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss

EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10. NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

EUR AUD CAD Uss$
69,779 249,548 94,403 421,257
- 57,809 - -
12,343 12 11 8
82,122 307,369 94,414 421,265
(38,525) (133,150) (171,447) (106,247)
- (86,226) - -
(11,148) (787) (470) (153)
(49,673) (220,163) (171,917) (106,400)
- - - 484,686

2,710 - - -
2,710 - - 484,686
(161,586) (517,102) (96,571) -
- - - 605,610

- - - (157,500)
137,899 2,209,852 627,189 775,484
1,470 5,083 - -

- - (31,667) (6,453)
(9,788) 101,902 (16,872) -
3,154 1,886,941 404,576 2,016,692
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NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The net gain on investment activities for the year ended 31st May 2016 is as follows:

EUR AUD CAD us$
Net realised gain from:
- Investments and currencies 101,509 750,176 540,730 3,073
- Futures contracts - 493,012 - -
- Forward currency contracts 4,868 738 495 332
106,377 1,243,926 541,225 3,405
Net realised loss from:
- Investments and currencies (24,850) (290,661) (123,861) (268,030)
- Futures contracts - (518,265) - -
- Forward currency contracts (4,876) (615) (408) (474)

(29,726) (809,541) (124,269) (268,504)

Net change in unrealised gain from:

- Investments and currencies - - - 892

- Forward currency contracts - - 3 3

- - 3 895

Net change in unrealised loss from:

- Investments and currencies (75,315) (380,060) (549,121) (568,972)

- Forward currency contracts (577) - - -
(75,892) (380,060) (549,121) (568,972)

Dividend income - - - 583,806
Dividend expense - - - (68,213)

Interest income 153,573 2,545,716 771,594 940,848
Net expense equalisation (1,124) (10,805) (109,398) (45,477)

Net capital equalisation (34,004) (335,814) (23,875) -

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at

fair value through profit or loss 119,204 2,253,422 506,159 577,788

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The AIFM, Depositary, Investment Manager, Agent Company, Distributor and related companies are deemed to be related
parties under Financial Reporting Standard (FRS 102). Fees incurred with related parties during the year are
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Amounts payable to related parties at the year end are disclosed
inNote 9.

Asingle Unitholder, Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd, holds 100% of the Units of each Sub-Fund.

In accordance with the requirements of the AIF Rulebook, all transactions carried out with the Fund by the AIFM,
Investment Manager, Trustee, Investment Adviser or by delegates or group companies (* connected parties” ) must be
carried out as if negotiated at arm”s length and be in the best interests of unitholders. The AIFM is satisfied that
there are arrangements in place (evidenced by written procedures) to ensure that the obligations set out above are
applied to all transactions with connected parties and transactions with connected parties entered into during the

year complied with the obligations set out above.
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12. DIVIDEND POLICY

The AIFM intends to declare distributions monthly, out of all net interest, dividends and other income received by
each Sub-Fund subject to such adjustments as may be appropriate pursuant to the provisions of the Trust Deed. The AIFM
may also distribute to the Unitholders monthly, or at such other times as it may determine, the realised and unrealised
capital gains less realised and unrealised capital losses of each Sub-Fund.

Distributions are declared as at the last business day of each month and are paid on the second business day
immediately following the distribution date to the Distributor in respect of Units distributed in Japan for each of
the Sub-Funds except for Canada Bond Fund when distributions are declared on the 15t day of each month or if such day is
not a business day the preceding business day and are paid on the business day immediately following the distribution
date. Distributions are made to Unitholders entered on the register at the close of business on the business day
preceding the distribution date.

Distributions for the year ended 31st May 2017 were as fol lows:

Dividend per Unit Dividend Amount Dividend per Unit Dividend Amount

EUR EUR AUD AUD

June 2016 0.011 5,002 0.041 203,934
July 2016 0.011 5,004 0.041 203,963
August 2016 0.011 4,987 0.041 203,614
September 2016 0.011 4,986 0.041 204,864
October 2016 0.011 4,975 0.041 210,435
November 2016 0.011 4,958 0.041 218,043
December 2016 0.011 4,967 0.041 223,213
January 2017 0.011 4,928 0.041 223,196
February 2017 0.011 4,879 0.041 221,322
March 2017 0.011 4,782 0.041 221,053
April 2017 0.011 4,764 0.041 219,565
May 2017 0.011 4,758 0.041 218,065
Total 58,990 2,571,267
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12. DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

Dividend per Unit Dividend Amount Dividend per Unit Dividend Amount

CAD CAD Us$ us$

June 2016 0.022 48,617 0.020 65,693
July 2016 0.022 48,633 0.020 65,473
August 2016 0.022 48,482 0.020 64,626
September 2016 0.022 48,015 0.020 64,073
October 2016 0.022 47,480 0.020 64,303
November 2016 0.022 47,016 0.020 63,245
December 2016 0.022 46,642 0.020 62,530
January 2017 0.022 46,389 0.015 47,658
February 2017 0.022 46,077 0.015 47,237
March 2017 0.022 45,801 0.015 46,820
April 2017 0.022 45,601 0.015 46,496
May 2017 0.022 45,382 0.015 46,036
Total 564,135 684,190

Distributions for the year ended 31st May 2016 were as fol lows:

Dividend per Unit Dividend Amount Dividend per Unit Dividend Amount

EUR EUR AUD AUD

June 2015 0.011 5,650 0.041 234,104
July 2015 0.011 5,578 0.041 234,427
August 2015 0.011 5,583 0.041 235,533
September 2015 0.011 5,559 0.041 236,437
October 2015 0.011 5,452 0.041 227,526
November 2015 0.011 5,423 0.041 220,529
December 2015 0.011 4,971 0.041 205,978
January 2016 0.011 4,966 0.041 205,865
February 2016 0.011 5,056 0.041 204,876
March 2016 0.011 5,020 0.041 204,929
April 2016 0.011 5,009 0.041 203,376
May 2016 0.011 4,995 0.041 205,635
Total 63,262 2,619,215
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12. DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

Dividend per Unit Dividend Amount Dividend per Unit Dividend Amount
CAD CAD Us$ us$
June 2015 0.022 56,854 0.020 74,191
July 2015 0.022 56,399 0.020 73,385
August 2015 0.022 55,920 0.020 71,739
September 2015 0.022 55,590 0.020 70,727
October 2015 0.022 55,082 0.020 70,463
November 2015 0.022 54,709 0.020 69,145
December 2015 0.022 50,961 0.020 68,069
January 2016 0.022 48,481 0.020 67,872
February 2016 0.022 49,057 0.020 67,801
March 2016 0.022 49,086 0.020 67,101
April 2016 0.022 48,817 0.020 66,882
May 2016 0.022 48,677 0.020 66,415
Total 629,633 833,790
13. NAV HISTORY
2017 EUR AUD CAD us$
NAV EUR4,409,796  AUD52,679,947  CAD20,446,293  US$23,998,947
Number of Units 432,570 5,320,450 2,055,330 3,064,060
NAV per Unit EUR10.19 AUD9.90 CAD9.95 US$7.83
2016
NAV EUR4,823,191  AUD51,218,857  CAD22,527,502  US$25,418,519
Number of Units 454,090 5,014,380 2,211,760 3,320,160
NAV per Unit EUR10.62 AUD10.21 CAD10.19 US$7.66
2015
NAV EUR5,553,794  AUD59,700,066  CAD26,993,145  US$30,020,330
Number of Units 515,860 5,755,650 2,607,210 3,793,820
NAV per Unit EUR10.77 AUD10.37 CAD10.35 Us$7.91
14. TAXATION

Under current law and practice the Fund qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the Taxes
Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. On that basis, it is not chargeable to Irish tax on its income or gains.

However, Irish tax may arise on the happening of a“ chargeable event” . A chargeable event includes any distribution

payments to Unitholders or any encashment, redemption, cancellation, transfer or the holding of units at the end of
each eight year period beginning with the acquisition of such units.

163/284



14.

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TAXATION (continued)

No Irish tax will arise on the Fund in respect of chargeable events in respect of:

(a) aUnitholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes, at the time of the
chargeable event, provided appropriate valid declarations in accordance with the provisions of the Taxes
Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended, are held by the Fund or where the Fund has been authorised by Irish Revenue to make
gross payments in absence of appropriate declarations; and

(b) certain exempted Irish tax resident Unitholders who have provided the Fund with the necessary signed statutory
declarations.

Dividends, interest and capital gains (if any) received on investments made by the Fund may be subject to withholding
taxes imposed by the country from which the investment income/gains are received and such taxes may not be recoverable
by the Fund or its Unitholders.

15. SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Fund does not have any soft commission arrangements.

16. EXCHANGE RATES USED IN THIS REPORT

17.

Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund
The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into one Euro:

2017 2016
Danish Krone 7.439614 7.438465
Polish Zloty - 4.390829
Pound Sterling 0.871064 0.764859
Swedish Krona 9.755083 9.299264

Monthly Dividend Canada Bond Fund
The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into one Canadian Dol lar:

2017 2016
Euro - 0.686698

Monthly Dividend US Preferred Securities Fund

The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into one US Dollar:

2017 2016
Euro 0.889280 0.898270
Japanese Yen 110.585000 110.095000

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no events subsequent to the year end and up to 21st September 2017 which require disclosure in the financial

statements.
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18. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the AIFM approved the financial statements of the Fund on 21st September 2017.
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Daiwa Bond Fund Series
Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments

31st May 2017
Fair
Nominal Value % of
Holding EUR NAV
Debt Securities
Austria (2016: 7.35%)
Austria Government 3.5% 15-Sep-21 7,000 8,182 0.19
Austria Government 3.4% 22-Nov-22 73,000 87,486 1.98
Heta Asset Res 2.375% 13-Dec-22 100,000 110,049 2.50
Republic of Austria 3.8% 26-Jan-62 10,000 16,842 0.38
Telekom Finanz 3.125% 03-Dec-21 20,000 22,495 0.51
245,054 5.56
Belgium (2016: 1.65%)
Belguim Government 0.8% 22-Jun-25 35,000 36,383 0.83
Belgium Kingdom 4% 28-Mar-32 70,000 99,073 2.25
Belgium Kingdom 5% 28-Mar-35 26,000 42,261 0.96
177,717 4.04
Canada (2016: 1.12%)
Royal Bank of Canada 4.625% 22-Jan-18 50,000 51,618 1.17
51,618 1.17
Czech Republic (2016: 1.80%)
Czech Government 3.875% 24-May-22 71,000 84,116 1.91
84,116 1.91
Denmark (2016: 2.73%)
Realkredit Danmark 2% 01-Apr-23 209,000 30,751 0.70
Realkredit Danmark 2% 01-Apr-24 700,000 102,735 2.33
133,486 3.03
France (2016: 17.56%)
Axa FRN 16-Apr-40 50,000 56,088 1.27
BNP Paribas 2.5% 23-Aug-19 6,000 6,341 0.14
France Government 4.25% 25-0Oct-18 122,000 130,312 2.95
France Government 3.75% 25-Apr-21 141,000 164,163 3.71
France Government 2.25% 25-May-24 48,000 55,086 1.25
France Government 1.75% 25-Nov-24 7,000 7,784 0.18
France Government 6% 25-0ct-25 40,000 58,784 1.33
France Government 0.25% 25-Nov-26 77,000 74,168 1.68
France Government 4% 25-0ct-38 2,000 2,941 0.07
France Government 3.25% 25-May-45 105,000 140,907 3.20
RCI Banque 2.25% 29-Mar-21 50,000 53,531 1.21
750,105 16.99
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Daiwa Bond Fund Series
Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments

31st May 2017
(Continued)
Nominal Fair % of
Holding Value NAV
Debt Securities (continued)
Germany (2016: 17.44%)
Commerzbank 4% 23-Mar-26 15,000 16,461 0.37
Germany Federal Republic 1.5% 15-May-24 11,000 12,259 0.28
Germany Government 1% 12-Oct-18 186,000 190,577 4.32
Germany Government 2.5% 04-Jan-21 37,000 41,206 0.93
Germany Government 0.5 15-Feb-25 52,000 54,096 1.23
Germany Government 1% 15-Aug-25 131,000 141,282 3.20
Germany Government 0.25% 15-Feb-27 25,000 24,908 0.56
Germany Government 4% 04-Jan-37 76,000 119,079 2.70
Germany Government 2.5% 04-Jul-44 69,400 91,810 2.08
Germany Government 2.5% 18-Aug-46 77,000 102,834 2.33
KFW 4.375% 04-Jul-18 38,000 40,060 0.91
834,572 18.91
Iceland (2016: 2.22%)
Iceland Government 2.5% 15-Jul-20 100,000 107,382 2.44
107,382 2.44
Ireland (2016: 4.35%)
AlB Mortgage 4.875% 29-Jun-17 100,000 100,401 2.28
Cloverie Plc FRN 24-Jul-39 50,000 57,450 1.30
Ireland Government 5.4% 13-Mar-25 49,000 67,266 1.53
225,117 5.11
Italy (2016: 15.07%)
Buoni Poliennali Del Tes 3.5% 01-Jun-18 75,000 77,870 1.77
Buoni Poliennali Del Tes 0.7% 01-May-20 10,000 10,134 0.23
Buoni Poliennali Del Tes 4.75% 01-Sep-21 39,000 45,741 1.04
Italy Government 3.75% 01-Mar-21 22,000 24,720 0.56
Italy Government 5.5% 01-Sep-22 50,000 61,569 1.40
Italy Government 4.5% 01-May-23 8,000 9,502 0.22
Italy Government 2% 01-Dec-25 110,000 111,094 2.52
Italy Government 4.75% 01-Sep-28 20,000 24,755 0.56
Italy Government 6% 01-May-31 104,000 146,207 3.32
Italy Government 5.75% 01-Feb-33 18,000 25,096 0.57
Italy Government 4.75% 01-Sep-44 28,000 35,281 0.80
Unicredit SPA 4.375% 31-Jan-22 50,000 59,864 1.36
631,833 14.35
Mexico (2016: 1.26%)
AmericaMovil 4.75% 28-Jun-22 50,000 60,001 1.36
60,001 1.36
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Daiwa Bond Fund Series
Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments

31st May 2017
(Continued)
Nominal Fair % of
Holding Value NAV
Debt Securities (continued)
Netherlands (2016: 5.39%)
Heineken NV 3.5% 19-Mar-24 5,000 5,917 0.13
ING Bank NV FRN 29-May-23 50,000 52,963 1.20
Netherlands Government 5.5% 15-Jan-28 103,400 157,517 3.57
Rabobank Ned 4% 11-Jan-22 30,000 35,208 0.80
251,605 5.70
Poland (2016: 2.72%) - - -
Slovenia (2016: 1.33%)
Republika Slovenija 2.125% 28-Jul-25 10,000 11,006 0.25
Republika Slovenija 1.25% 22-Mar-27 24,000 24,089 0.55
Slovenia Government 5.125% 30-Mar-26 40,000 54,348 1.23
Slovenija Republic 1.5% 25-Mar-35 10,000 9,284 0.21
98,727 2.24
Spain (2016: 7.69%)
Bonos Y Oblig Del Estado 5.15% 31-Oct-44 13,000 18,862 0.43
Instituto De Credito Oficial 6% 08-Mar-21 15,000 18,348 0.42
Spain Government 4.6% 30-Jul-19 8,000 8,841 0.20
Spain Government 5.85% 31-Jan-22 97,000 122,337 2.76
Spain Government 5.9% 30-Jul-26 15,000 20,854 0.47
Telefonica 4.693% 11-Nov-19 50,000 55,701 1.26
244,943 5.54
Supranational (2016: 1.78%)
Eurofima 4% 27-0ct-21 50,000 58,779 1.33
58,779 1.33
Sweden (2016: 3.27%)
Nordea Bank AB 4% 29-Mar-21 50,000 57,160 1.30
Nordea Hypotek 1% 08-Apr-22 400,000 42,045 0.95
Skandinaviska Enski lda Banken AB 1.5% 17-Jun-20 500,000 53,612 1.22
Sweden Government 3.5% 30-Mar-39 35,000 4,965 0.11
157,782 3.58
Switzerland (2016: 0%)
UBS London 1.375% 16-Apr-21 45,000 47,423 1.08
47,423 1.08
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Daiwa Bond Fund Series
Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments

31st May 2017
(Continued)
Nominal Fair % of
Holding value NAV
EUR
Debt Securities (continued)
United States (2016: 4.41%)
Bank of America 4.625% 07-Aug-17 50,000 50,445 1.14
Goldman Sachs 6.375% 02-May-18 30,000 31,794 0.72
Morgan Stanley 5.5% 02-Oct-17 50,000 50,960 1.16
133,199 3.02
Total Debt Securities (2016: 99.14%) 4,293,459 97.36
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Daiwa Bond Fund Series
Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments

31st May 2017
(Continued)
Notional Unrealised
Cost Gain % of
EUR EUR NAV
Forward Currency Contracts
Denmark
Danish Krone 09-Aug-17 (134,731) 21 -
Sweden
Swedish Krona 12-Jul-17 (102,995) 1,735 0.04
Total unrealised gain on forward currency 1,756 0.04

contracts

The counterparty for the forward currency contracts is BBH & Co.

170/284



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Daiwa Bond Fund Series
Monthly Dividend Euro Bond Fund
Schedule of Portfolio Movements

31st May 2017

Acquisition Disposal

Nominal Nominal

Austria Government 3.9% 15-Jul-20 - 55,000
Austria Government 3.5% 15-Sep-21 - 35,000
Austria Government 3.4% 22-Nov-22 35,000 -
Belgium Kingdom 4% 28-Mar-32 70,000 -
Bonos Y Oblig Del Estado 3.45% 30-Jul-66 31,000 31,000
Bonos Y Oblig Del Estado 5.15% 31-Oct-44 - 32,000
France Government 2.25% 25-May-24 - 60,000
France Government 0.25% 25-Nov-26 77,000 -
France Government 5.75% 25-0ct-32 - 56,000
France Government 3.25% 25-May-45 81,000 -
Gas Natural Cap 4.5% 27-Jan-20 - 50,000
Germany Government 1% 12-Oct-18 91,000 -
Germany Government 2.5% 04-Jan-21 40,000 50,000
Germany Government 2% 04-Jan-22 70,000 186,000
Germany Government 0.5 15-Feb-25 55,000 56,000
Germany Government 1% 15-Aug-25 31,000 85,000
Germany Government 0.25% 15-Feb-27 55,000 30,000
Germany Government 2.5% 04-Jul-44 16,400 -
Germany Government 2.5% 18-Aug-46 84,000 30,000
Intesa Sanpaolo 4.125% 14-Apr-20 - 50,000
Ireland Government 5.4% 13-Mar-25 40,000 24,000
Italy Government 5.5% 01-Sep-22 27,000 -
Italy Government 2% 01-Dec-25 40,000 -
Italy Government 3.25% 01-Sep-46 44,000 44,000
Nordea Hypotek 1% 08-Apr-22 400,000 -
Poland Government 0.875% 10-May-27 - 37,000
Republic of Austria 1.2% 20-Oct-25 - 30,000
Republika Slovenija 1.25% 22-Mar-27 24,000 -
Spain Government 0.5% 31-Oct-17 - 31,000
Sweden Government 3.5% 30-Mar-39 - 295,000
UBS London 1.375% 16-Apr-21 45,000 -

The above represents the statement of changes in the composition of the portfolio during the year, as required by the
Central Bank of Ireland. This schedule shows the 20 largest acquisitions and 20 largest disposals in the year. It is not
intended to provide a reconciliation between holdings at the beginning of the year and holdings at the end of the year.
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2017
5,180,456.14 688,224
136,467.24 18,130
5,043,988.90 670,094
500,630
10.08 1,339
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€))
40
2017 40 6,055

6,250 83 313
2011 12 40
2012 12 40
2013 12 40
2014 40 500
2014 22 40 2,350
2014 12 40 2,350
2015 25 40 2,850
2015 12 40 2,850
2016 25 40 6,250
2016 12 40 6,250

)

174/284



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

175/284



2017

61,403,215.70
25,029,912,646

EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159

1,974,094,456.70
251,072,134.82

1,021,

Ooooooooooooooooooad

485,594.90 5,043,988.90
1,072,176,174.72

1,729,321,795.

34

974,218,169.

50

42,778,622.

76

251,072,134.

82

244,772,661.

36

47,267,425.

40

5,043,988.

90

18,624,592.

94

1,072,176,174.

72

25,029,912,646
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131

23 103

2017 29 UFJ
132.85
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30
2016 30 2015 30
6,322,020 839,880 5,050,115 670,908
887,552 117,911 1,131,113 150,268
7,209,572 957,792 6,181,228 821,176
3,970,839 527,526 3,378,486 448,832
36,956,305 4,909,645 11,596,220 1,540,558
37,914 5,037
40,927,144 5,437,171 15,012,620 1,994,427
10 (3,640,131) (483,591) (4,308,036) (572,323)
37,287,013 4,953,580 10,704,584 1,422,104
44,496,585 5,911,371 16,885,812 2,243,280
11 62,992,338 8,368,532 28,992,338 3,851,632
12 4,050,000 538,043 4,050,000 538,043
27,498 3,653 (89,316) (11,866)
(22,573,251) (2,998,856) (16,067,210) (2,134,529)
44,496,585 5,911,371 16,885,812 2,243,280
2017 26
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30

2016 30 2015 30
16,959,480 2,253,067 15,850,091 2,105,685
(23,469,569) (3,117,932) (22,110,879) (2,937,430)
(6,510,089) (864,865) (6,260,788) (831,746)

9,191 1,221 22,832 3,033
(6,500,898) (863,644) (6,237,956) (828,712)
(5.143) (683) 3,551 472
(6,506,041) (864,328) (6,234,405) (828,241)
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2016 30 2015 30

(6,506,041) (864,328) (6,234,405) (828,241)
133,502 17,736 115,952 15,404
(16,688) (2,217) (14,494) (1,926)
116,814 15,519 101,458 13,479

(6,389,227) (848,809) (6,132,947) (814,762)
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28,992,338 4,050,000 (89,316)  (16,067,210) 16,885,812
(6,506,041)  (6,506,041)

116,814 116,814

116,814 (6,506,041)  (6,389,227)

34,000,000 34,000,000
34,000,000 34,000,000
62,992,338 4,050,000 27,498 (22,573,251) 44,496,585
23,992,338 4,050,000 (190,774)  (9.,832,805) 18,018,759
(6,234,405)  (6,234,405)

101,458 101,458

101,458 (6,234,405)  (6,132,947)

5,000,000 5,000,000
5,000,000 5,000,000
28,992,338 4,050,000 (89,316)  (16,067,210) 16,885,812
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2016 30
102 102
19
102
102
102 26
2014 39 102 11
102 12
102
102 102
2014
102 19
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2015 12 31
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405
2013 2013
2016 25
3,400 3,400
2016 30 2015 30
16,143,194 14,790,535
7,326,375 7,320,344
23,469,569 22,110,879
2016 30 2015 30
12,130,330 11,061,163
1,325,339 1,197,901
879,039 806,648
1,808,486 1,724,823
16,143,194 14,790,535
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228 2015 208
SMTTIL
2016 30 2015 30
217,080 134,630
713,494 1,133,807
9,209 25,363
23,000 23,000
4,050 5,700
86,000 91,700
517,382 380,459
371,884
944,334 837,848
65,444 58,642
2016 30 2015 30
(5,143) 3,551
(5,143) 3,551
2016 30 2015 30
16,688 14,494
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2016 30 2015 30
(6,500,898) (6,237,956)
12.5 2015 12.5 (812,612) (779,745)
(38,329) 6,217
1,538 1,081
1,355 1,941
36,943 57,095
816,248 709,860
(5,143) 3,551
59,206 62,253
2016 30
2015 30 5,050,115 5,050,115
1,643,789 1,643,789
2016 30 6,693,904 6,693,904
2015 30
371,884 371,884
2016 30 371,884 371,884
2016 30 6,322,020 6,322,020
2015 30
2014 30 1,853,611 1,853,611
3,196,504 3,196,504
2015 30 5,050,115 5,050,115
2014 30
2015 30
2015 30 5,050,115 5,050,115
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Advent Geneva and Paladyne

2016
2016 30
2015 30 1,837,618 1,289,863 2,913,862 6,041,343
18,853 72,772 182,196 273,821
(551,934) (551,934)
2016 30 1,304,537 1,362,635 3,096,058 5,763,230
2015 30 1,752,118 1,089,750 2,068,362 4,910,230
27,822 123,240 366,320 517,382
(551,934) (551,934)
2016 30 1,228,006 1,212,990 2,434,682 4,875,678
2016 30 76,531 149,645 661,376 887,552
2015 30
2014 30 1,798,534 1,145,027 2,478,348 5,421,909
39,084 144,836 435,514 619,434
2015 30 1,837,618 1,289,863 2,913,862 6,041,343
2014 30 1,727,055 986,207 1,816,509 4,529,771
25,063 103,543 251,853 380,459
0
2015 30 1,752,118 1,089,750 2,068,362 4,910,230
2015 30 85,500 200,113 845,500 1,131,113
2016 30 2015 30
1,857,607 1,723,808
1,397,797 1,421,157
106,712 150,300
217,401 38,619
368,551
22,771 44,602
3,970,839 3,378,486
3,795,560 2015 2,959,142

188/284



10

PRSI

11

2016
25
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2015

290,376
170,250

400,000
100,000,000

400,000
62,500,000

3,400
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2016 30 2015 30
36,956,305 11,596,220
36,956,305 11,596,220

2016 30 2015 30

1,764,189 1,762,273
430,752 1,032,566
158,721 113,441
821,593 821,593
464,876 578,163
3,640,131 4,308,036
2015 289,068 174,829
2015 74,419
2016 30 2015 30
492,338 492,338
62,500,000 28,500,000
62,992,338 28,992,338
50,000,000 100,000,000 2016
3,400
2016 30 2015 30
4,050,000 4,050,000
4,050,000 4,050,000
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2016 30 2015 30
1,032,381 63,135 899,395 27,680
3,821,244 128,754 3,746,814 35,499
5,573,659 6,509,720
10,427,284 191,889 11,155,929 63,179
2016 30 2015 30
879,039 806,648
52,849 46,990
33
100 8233

2014
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1,400,000

265,000,000

160,000

£1,800,000

2015 436,560

1,400,000

230,000,000

175,000

£1,650,000

2016

2015

30

€1,240,159

€2,182,539

€104,187

€2,268,706

2016 12

30

€1,220,057

€1,686,070

€114,724

€2,207,843

2015 12
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€9,749 (€2,022) €7,727
€7,501 (€153,643) (€146,142)
€0 (€3,056) (€3,056)
€200,151 €0 €200,151
€217,401 (€158,721) €58,680
2017 30
149,885
€217,401 €217,401
€217,401 €217,401
€158,721 €158,721
€158,721 €158,721
€3,760 (€31,668) (€27,908)
€8,604 (€43,694) (€35,090)
€6,327 €0 €6,327
€19,928 (€38,079) (€18, 151)
€38,619 (€113,441) (€74,822)
2016 30
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2016 30
102
102
205,000
2015
2015 30
20 2014
2014
357
21
2017

26
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€38,619 €38,619
€38,619 €38,619
€113,441 €113,441
€113,441 €113,441
102
102
2014 10
2015 30 235,000 30,000
30
2015 30 2014 10
17,156,906 18,365,061
(74,822) (190,774)
(235,000) (205,000)
38,728 49,472
16,885,812 18,018,759
2015 30
(6,208,155)
(30,000)
3,750
(6,234,405)
357
2016 30
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Statement of financial position
as at 30 September 2016

30 September 30 September
2016 2015
Note (restated)
€ €
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 6 6,322,020 5,050,115
Tangible fixed assets 7 887,552 1,131,113
7,209,572 6,181,228
Current assets
Debtors 8 3,970,839 3,378,486
Cash at bank and in hand 9 36,956,305 11,596,220
Restricted cash - held in escrow - 37,914
40,927,144 15,012,620
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 10 (3,640,131) (4,308,036)
Net current assets 37,287,013 10,704,584
Net assets 44,496,585 16,885,812
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 62,992,338 28,992,338
Additional paid in capital 12 4,050,000 4,050,000
Cash flow hedge reserve 27,498 (89,316)
Profit and loss account (22,573,251) (16,067,210)
Equity shareholder®s funds 44,496,585 16,885,812

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of financial position.

On behalf of the board

Director Director 26 January 2017

Hiromitsu Tanaka Peter Callaghan

193/284



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Profit and loss account
for the year ended 30 September 2016

30 September 30 September

2016 2015

Note (restated)

€ €

Turnover 16,959,480 15,850,091
Administrative expenses 3 (23,469,569) (22,110,879)
Loss on ordinary activities before interest and taxation (6,510,089) (6,260,788)
Interest income 9,191 22,832
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation 4 (6,500,898) (6,237,956)
Taxation on ordinary activities 5 (5,143) 3,551
Loss for the year (6,506,041) (6,234,405)

All results have been generated by continuing operations.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this profit and loss account.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Statement of other comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 September 2016

30 September 30 September

2016 2015

€ €

Loss for the year (6,506,041) (6,234,405)
Other comprehensive income

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow 133,502 115,952

hedges

Income tax on other comprehensive income (16,688) (14,494)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 116,814 101,458

Total comprehensive income for the year (6,389,227) (6,132,947)
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 September 2016

Balance at 1 October 2015

Total comprehensive income for the
period

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
period

Total comprehensive income for the
period

Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity

Issue of Shares

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners

Balance at 30 September 2016

Balance at 1 October 2014

Total comprehensive income for the
period

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
period

Total comprehensive income for the
period

Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity

Issue of Shares

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners

Balance at 30 September 2015
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Called up Additional Cash flow Profit and Total
Share Paid in hedging loss account equity
Capital Capital reserve
€ € € € €
28,992,338 4,050,000 (89,316) (16,067,210) 16,885,812
- - - (6,506,041)  (6,506,041)
- - 116,814 - 116,814
- - 116,814 (6,506,041)  (6,389,227)
34,000,000 - - - 34,000,000
34,000,000 - - - 34,000,000
62,992,338 4,050,000 27,498  (22,573,251) 44,496,585
Called up Additional Cash flow PrOf'tngS Total
Share paid in hedging account equity
Capital Capital reserve
€ € € €
€
23,992,338 4,050,000 (190,774)  (9,832,805) 18,018,759
- - - (6,234,405)  (6,234,405)
- - 101,458 - 101,458
- - 101,458 (6,234,405)  (6,132,947)
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
5,000,000 - - - (5,000,000)
28,992,338 4,050,000 (89,316) (16,067,210) 16,885,812
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2016

1 Accounting Policies

SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited (the" Company” ) with a registered office at Block 5, Harcourt Centre,
Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, is a private company limited by shares and incorporated and domiciled in Ireland.

The functional and presentation currency of these financial statements is Euro.

In the transition to FRS 102 from Irish GAAP, the Company has made measurement and recognition adjustments.
An explanation of how the transition to FRS 102 has affected financial position and financial performance of
the Company is provided in note 19.

The Company*s immediate parent undertaking, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited includes the Company in
its consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
(lreland) Limited are available to the public and may be obtained from Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt
Road, Dublin 2, Ireland.

In these financial statements, the company is considered to be a qualifying entity (for the purposes of this
FRS) and has applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in respect of the following disclosures:
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning to end of the period;
(9 Cash Flow Statement and related notes; and
Key Management Personnel compensation.

As the consolidated financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. include the equivalent
disclosures, the Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 102 available in respect of the following
disclosures:
59 Certain disclosures required by FRS 102.26 Share Based Payments; and,
7] The disclosures required by FRS 102.11 Basic Financial Instruments and FRS 102.12 Other Financial
Instrument Issues in respect of financial instruments not falling within the fair value accounting rules
of Schedule 3, paragraph 39 of the Companies Act 2014.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements. On first time adoption of FRS 102, the Company has not
retrospectively changed its accounting under Irish GAAP for derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
before the date of transition, hedge accounting for any hedging relationships that no longer existed at the
date of transition, accounting estimates or discontinued operations.

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are as follows:

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (* "FRS 102°%)
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland and issued by the Financial

Reporting Council, and promulgated for use in Ireland by Chartered Accountants Ireland. The Company is also
subject to the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.
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The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except for the modification to a fair

value basis for certain financial instruments as specified in the accounting policies below.

This is the first year in which the financial statements have been prepared under FRS 102. Refer to note 19
for an explanation of the transition.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expense (e.g. useful economic life). The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the periods in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account on an accruals basis.

Turnover and Administration Expenses

Turnover comprises fee income from administration and management services, which is accounted for on an
accruals basis. Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. Turnover and administration expenses are
shown exclusive of amounts earned by and paid to other service providers be they group companies or other
non-group service providers.

Foreign Currencies

The financial statements are expressed in Euro (€), which is the functional and presentation currency of the

Company .

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at rates
which approximate the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Share capital is translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of its issue.

Profits and losses arising from currency translation and on settlement of amounts receivable and payable in
foreign currencies are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

Basic Financial Instruments

Trade and other debtors / creditors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable transaction costs.
Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses in the case of trade debtors.

Cash
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Cash comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand.

Restricted cash - held in escrow

The amount held in escrow, in the prior year, relates to rent payments up until 31 December 2015. The rental
agreements for the Dublin property were renegotiated and the requirement for the escrow account no longer
exists so it has been closed.

Other financial instruments

Financial instruments not considered to be Basic financial instruments (Other financial instruments)

Other financial instruments not meeting the definition of Basic Financial Instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition other financial instruments are measured at fair
value with changes recognised in profit or loss except as follows:

- investments in equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be
measured reliably shall be measured at cost less impairment; and

- hedging instruments in a designated hedging relationship shall be recognised as set out below.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting,
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see below).

Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges are used to cover the Company®s exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable
to particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment which could affect
income or expenses. Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part
of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in Other comprehensive
income (* OCI” ). Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For cash flow hedges, where the forecast transactions resulted in the recognition of a non-financial asset or
non-financial liability, the hedging gain or loss recognised in OClI is included in the initial cost or other
carrying amount of the asset or liability. Alternatively when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss
the hedging gain or loss is reclassified to profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity discontinues designation
of the hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the
transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised
gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement immediately.

Taxation
Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit

and loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.
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Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax

rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax
assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements. The
following timing differences are not provided for: differences between accumulated depreciation and tax
allowances for the cost of a fixed asset if and when all conditions for retaining the tax allowances have
been met, to the extent that it is not probable that they will reverse in the foreseeable future and the
reporting entity is able to control the reversal of the timing difference. Deferred tax is not recognised on
permanent differences arising because certain types of income or expense are non-taxable or are disallowable
for tax or because certain tax charges or allowances are greater or smaller than the corresponding income or
expense.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the reversal of the related difference,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax balances are not
discounted.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that is it probable
that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

A deferred tax asset is recorded where it is more likely than not to be recoverable. The recoverability of
deferred tax assets is assessed annually by the directors.

Intangible assets

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the profit and loss account as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities may be capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Company intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to
complete development, future economic benefits are probable and if the Company can measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Development activities involve the
design, construction or testing of the production of new or substantially improved products or processes. The
expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recognised in the profit and loss
account as an expense as incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is charged in equal instalments on the cost of assets over their expected useful lives and is
included within administration costs.

Software 3 years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where necessary. Assets in
the course of development are not amortised until they are brought into use.

Tangible fixed assets
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Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is charged in equal instalments on

the cost of assets over their expected useful lives and is included within administration costs.

Furniture and equipment 5years
Software 3years
Mainframe Equipment 3years
Personal Computers 2 years
Computer Terminals 3years
Fund administration system 3years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where necessary.

Employee benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for employees. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account when they are
due.

Additional paid in capital

Subordinated Loans of €4.05 million previously received from the Company®s parent, that are non-interest
bearing and repayable at the Company®s discretion, were reclassified as capital during 2013, after a review
of their terms and conditions, and the receipt during 2013 of confirmation from the Company®s parent and that
these amounts are repayable solely at the volition of the Company and that the Company®s parent will not
demand repayment of these amounts.

Ownership and operations

The Company, which is engaged in the provision of administration and management company services to various
funds, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited, a company incorporated in the
Republic of Ireland. The ultimate parent company 1is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. a company
incorporated in Japan.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, and it is the intention of the directors to
continue to develop the activities of the Company in consultation with its parent. Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank
Limited is directly supporting the business development of the Company. On 25 January 2016, the Company
issued new share capital of 34 million €1 ordinary shares, upon the receipt of an investment of €34 million
from its parent company Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited.

The Company has entered into agreements with various entities to which it provides services. Under these
agreements, the Company has undertaken to provide administration services for an agreed fee.

Administrative expenses

30 September 30 September

2016 2015

€ €

Staff costs 16,143,194 14,790,535
Other administrative expenses 7,326,375 7,320,344
23,469,569 22,110,879

30 September 30 September

2016 2015

€ €
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Staff cost comprise:

Wages and salaries 12,130,330 11,061,163
Social welfare costs 1,325,339 1,197,901
Pension costs 879,039 806,648
Other costs 1,808,486 1,724,823

16,143,194 14,790,535

The average number of persons employed by the Company (including directors) during the year was 228
(September 2015: 208). The Company shared the use of facilities with SMT Trustees (lreland) Limited
(* SMTTIL” ) during the period. The related costs were allocated and recharged on an agreed basis, as set out
in service level agreements.
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Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

The loss on ordinary activities before taxation has been determined after charging the following:

30 September 30 September
2016 2015
€ €
Directors® remuneration:
Fees 217,080 134,630
Other remuneration 713,494 1,133,807
Defined pension contribution scheme 9,209 25,363
Retirement benefits are accruing for 3 directors.
Auditor®s remuneration:
Audit 23,000 23,000
Tax advisory services 4,050 5,700
Other assurance services 86,000 91,700
Depreciation 517,382 380,459
Amortisation of intangibles 371,884 -
Operating lease rentals:
Land & buildings 944,334 837,848
Other assets 65,444 58,642
Taxation on ordinary activities
30 September 30 September
2016 2015
€ €
(a) Total tax expense recognised in the income
statement
Current tax
Current tax on income for the period - -
Under /(over) provision in respect of prior year - -
Deferred taxation
Under / (Over) provision in prior period - -
Origination and reversal of timing differences (5,143) 3,551
Total tax expense (5,143) 3,551
30 September 30 September
2016 2015
€ €
(b) Total tax expense recognised in OCI
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 16,688 14,494
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(c) Tax reconciliation

30 September 30 September

2016 2015

€ €

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (6,500,898) (6,237,956)

Corporation tax based on standard rate at 12.5%

(September 2015: 12.5%) (812,612) (779,745)
Deficiency / (Excess) of depreciation over capital

allowances (38,329) 6,217

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,538 1,081

Differences arising from tax at the higher rate 1,355 1,941

Group relief (claimed) / surrendered 36,943 57,095

Losses carried forward 816,248 709,860

Total tax charge (5,143) 3,551

Income tax on health insurance premiums 59,206 62,253

The Income tax on health insurance premiums is included in other costs as per note 3 above.

Intangible Fixed Assets

As at 30 September 2016

Software Total
€ €
Cost
At 30 September 2015 5,050,115 5,050,115
Additions during year 1,643,789 1,643,789
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2016 6,693,904 6,693,904
Amortisation
At 30 September 2015 - -
Amortisation for year 371,884 371,884
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2016 371,884 371,884
Net book value at 30 September 2016 6,322,020 6,322,020
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As at 30 September 2015

Software Total
€ €
Cost
At 30 September 2014 1,853,611 1,853,611
Additions during year 3,196,504 3,196,504
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2015 5,050,115 5,050,115
Amortisation
At 30 September 2014 - -
Amortisation for year - -
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2015 - -
Net book value at 30 September 2015 5,050,115 5,050,115

The intangible asset relates to the development of the project to implement Advent Geneva and Paladyne as the
core fund administration system. The system went live on the 1 August 2016.

Tangible Fixed Assets

As at 30 September 2016

Furniture & Software Computer Total
Equipment Equipment
€ € € €

Cost

At 30 September 2015 1,837,618 1,289,863 2,913,862 6,041,343
Additions during year 18,853 72,772 182,196 273,821
Disposals during year (551,934) - - (551,934)
At 30 September 2016 1,304,537 1,362,635 3,096,058 5,763,230
Depreciation

At 30 September 2015 1,752,118 1,089,750 2,068,362 4,910,230
Depreciation for year 27,822 123,240 366,320 517,382
Disposals during year (551,934) - - (551,934)
At 30 September 2016 1,228,006 1,212,990 2,434,682 4,875,678
Net book value at 30 September 2016 76,531 149,645 661,376 887,552
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As at 30 September 2015

Furniture & Software Computer Total
Equipment Equipment
€ € € €
Cost
At 30 September 2014 1,798,534 1,145,027 2,478,348 5,421,909
Additions during year 39,084 144,836 435,514 619,434
Disposals during year - - - -
At 30 September 2015 1,837,618 1,289,863 2,913,862 6,041,343
Depreciation
At 30 September 2014 1,727,055 986,207 1,816,509 4,529,771
Depreciation for year 25,063 103,543 251,853 380,459
Disposals during year - - - 0
At 30 September 2015 1,752,118 1,089,750 2,068,362 4,910,230
Net book value at 30 September 2015 85,500 200,113 845,500 1,131,113
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
30 September 30 September
2016 2015
€ €
Fee debtors 1,857,607 1,723,808
Prepayments and accrued income 1,397,797 1,421,157
Other debtors 106,712 150,300
Short term asset on derivatives 217,401 38,619
Amount owed to related companies 368,551 -
Deferred tax 22,771 44,602
3,970,839 3,378,486

In addition, the Company has a further unrecognised deferred tax asset of €3,795,560 (September 2015: €
2,959,142). This has not been recognised due to the level of uncertainty over the timing of its recovery.

Cash at bank and in hand

30 September 30 September

2016 2015

€ €

Cash at bank and in hand 36,956,305 11,596,220
36,956,305 11,596,220
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10 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

30 September 30 September

2016 2015

€ €

Accruals 1,764,189 1,762,273
Corporation tax - -
Trade creditors 430,752 1,032,566
Short term liability on derivatives 158,721 113,441
Amount owed to parent 821,593 821,593
Amount owed to related companies 464,876 578,163
3,640,131 4,308,036

Accruals include creditors in relation to PAYE of €290,376 (2015: €289,068), PRSI of €174,829 (2015: €
170,250) and other taxes of €62,983 (2015: € 74,419).The amount owed to the parent company is unsecured and
interest free. The amount owed to the related companies includes a balance relating to services as outlined
in the services agreement. The balance is unsecured and interest free and repayable on demand.

11 Called up share capital

30 September 30 September
2016 2015
€ €
Authorised
400,000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 each
100,000,000 ordinary shares of EUR €1 each
Allotted, called up and fully paid
400,000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 each 492,338 492,338
62,500,000 ordinary shares of EUR €1 each 62,500,000 28,500,000
62,992,338 28,992,338

On 8 January 2016, the Company increased its authorised share capital from 50,000,000 to 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of Euro 1 each. On 25 January 2016, the Company issued new share capital of 34 million €1 shares, upon
the receipt of an investment of €34 million from its parent company Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited.
The proceeds of the allotment will be used to fund the continued development of the Company business.

12 Additional paid in capital

30 September 30 September

2016 2015

€ €

Additional paid in capital 4,050,000 4,050,000
4,050,000 4,050,000

In connection with €4.05 million of the total amounts received to date by the Company under the terms of the
subordinated loan arrangements for the non-interest bearing loans, the Directors noted the resolution made in
September 2013 by Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited (the* Parent Company” ) that they would not demand
repayment of the loans and that they are repayable solely at the volition of the Company. Accordingly, as
these amounts have now been confirmed as non repayable and do not bear interest or carry any other economic
obligation they were re-classified on the statement of financial position from long-term liabilities to
capital, in order to better reflect the capital nature of the transactions.

13 Commitments
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14

15

16

17

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

30 September 30 September

2016 2015
Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buildings
€ € € €

Operating leases which expire:

Within one year 1,032,381 63,135 899,395 27,680
In the second to fifth years inclusive 3,821,244 128,754 3,746,814 35,499
Over five years 5,573,659 - 6,509,720 -
10,427,284 191,889 11,155,929 63,179

Under an agreement, the Company has undertaken to provide or procure company secretarial and general
administration and support service to SMT Trustees (lreland) Limited. In return, the Company has agreed that
a fee will be paid for the services provided.

Pension costs

30 September 30 September

2016 2015

€ €

Pensions charge for year 879,039 806,648
Pension charge payable at end of year 52,849 46,990

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its executive directors and employees.

Related parties

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. whose consolidated financial
statements are publicly available. The Company is availing of the exemption under Section 33 of FRS 102'
Related Party Disclosures® to not disclose transactions with other group undertakings which would be
eliminated on consolidation in the financial statements of the group.

Ultimate parent company

The Company"s immediate parent undertaking is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited, a company incorporated
in Ireland. The Company®s ultimate parent undertaking is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc., a company
incorporated in Japan. The largest group in which the financial statements are consolidated is that headed by
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. Copies of the financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc.
are available to the public and may be obtained from 1-4-1 Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8233, Japan.

The smallest group in which the results of the company are consolidated is that headed by Sumitomo Mitsui
Trust (Ireland) Limited. Copies of the financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited are
available to the public and may be obtained from Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, Ireland.

Post balance sheet events

On 24 November 2016 the Company was converted to a Private Company limited by Shares (LTD) as provided for in
the Companies Act 2014.
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There were no other post balance sheet events which require amendment to or disclosure in the financial

statements.

Financial instruments - Hedge accounting

The following forward foreign currency contracts were open as at 30 September 2016.

_ - Total
Buy Euro UnrealéZ?g Unreﬁtgzgg Unrealised
Gain / (Loss)
Sell US Dollar
$1,400,000 €1,240,159 €9,749 (€2,022) €7,727
Sell Japanese Yen
\265,000,000 €2,182,539 €7,501 (€£153,643) (€£146,142)
Sell Australian Dollar
$160,000 €104,187 €0 (€3,056) (€3,056)
Sell British Pounds
£1,800,000 €2,268,706 €200,151 €0 €200,151
€217,401 (€158,721) €58,680

These cash flow hedges will settle quarterly over the period 1 December 2016 - 30 September 2017. The fair
value on the open contracts was calculated using WM Reuters forward fx rates. During the year a loss of €
149,885 (2015: loss of €436,560) was reclassified to the Profit and loss account during the year, having
previously been recorded in the statement of other comprehensive income statement in accordance with the cash
flow hedging policy. No collateral exists for any derivative contracts.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
Forward currency contracts €217,401 €217,401
Total - €217,401 - €217,401
Liabilities
Forward currency contracts €158,721 €158,721
Total - €158,721 - €158,721

Unrealised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised directly in the statement
of financial position and the statement of other comprehensive income (page 10), in accordance with the
Company*s cash flow hedge accounting policy.
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The following forward foreign currency contracts were open as at 30 September 2015.

Unrealised Unrealised thal
Buy Euro Gain (Loss) Unrealised
! Gain / (Loss)
Sell US Dollar
$1,400,000 €1,220,057 €3,760 (€31,668) (€£27,908)
Sell Japanese Yen
\230,000,000 €1,686,070 €8,604 (€43,694) (€35,090)
Sell Australian Dollar
$175,000 €114,724 €6,327 €0 €6,327
Sell British Pounds
£1,650,000 €2,207,843 €19,928 (€38,079) (€18,151)
€38,619 (€113,441) (€74,822)

These cash flow hedges settled quarterly over the period 1 December 2015 - 30 September 2016. The fair value
on the open contracts was calculated using WM Reuters forward fx rates.
No collateral exists for any derivative contracts.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
Forward currency contracts €38,619 €38,619
Total - €38,619 - €38,619
Liabilities
Forward currency contracts €113,441 €113,441
Total - €113,441 - €113,441

Unrealised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised directly in the statement
of financial position and the statement of other comprehensive income (page 10), in accordance with the
Company*s cash flow hedge accounting policy.

Transition to FRS 102

The company has adopted FRS 102 for the year ended 30 September 2016 and has restated the comparative prior
year amounts.

Changes for FRS 102 adoption:

1. Foreign exchange forward contracts are now recognised at fair value at the end of the year with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of financial position.

2. Prior to the adoption of FRS 102, SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited did not make provision for holiday
pay earned but not taken before the year end. FRS 102 requires the cost of short-term compensated absences
to be recognised when employees render the service that increases their entitlement. Consequently an
additional accrual of €205,000 at 1 October 2014 has been made to reflect this. The provision at 30
September 2015 had increased to €235,000 and the increase in the provision of €30,000 has been charged to
profit and loss in the year ended 30 September 2015.

30 September 2015 1 October 2014
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Capital and reserves (as previously stated)
Recognition of derivative financial instruments
Short term compensated absences

Deferred tax on transitional adjustments

Capital and reserves as restated
Restated profit for the year ended 30 September 2015
Loss for the year (as previously stated)

Short term compensated absences
Deferred tax on transitional adjustments

Profit for the year as restated

Guarantee under Irish Companies Act, 2014

Under Section 357 (1) (b) of the Irish Companies A
from filing their individual accounts provided that
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1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

17,156,906 18,365,061
(74,822) (190,774)
(235,000) (205,000)
38,728 49,472
16,885,812 18,018,759

30 September 2015
(6,208,155)
(30,000)

3,750

(6,234,405)

ct, 2014 companies registered in Ireland may be exempted
their liabilities are irrevocably guaranteed by a Parent

Company, which is required to be a registered Company of a Member State of the European Union. The Parent

Company must incorporate the results of the subsidiaries into its Group accounts. The results of the Company

have been consolidated into the results of the immediate Parent Company and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland)

Limited has agreed to irrevocably guarantee the liabilities of the Company as at 30 September 2016, in

accordance with Section 357 of the Act.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board

of directors on 26 January 2017.
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31
2017 31 2016

( ) C ) ( ) « )
5,206,370 691, 666 6,322,020 839,880
579,628 77,004 887,552 117,911
5,785,998 768,670 7,209,572 957,792
3,794,496 504,099 3,362,115 446,657
0 0 0 0
22,771 3,025 22,771 3,025
13,654 1,814 0 0
100,611 13,366 217,401 28,882
33,690,606 4,475,797 36,956,305 4,909,645
37,622,138 4,998,101 40,558,592 5,388,209
(2,332,866) (309,921)  (2,194,941) (291,598)
0 0 0 0
(505, 589) (67,167) (917,918) (121,945)
(72,717) (9,660) (158,721) (21,086)
40,496,964 5,380,022 44,496,585 5,911,371
62,992,338 8,368,532 62,992,338 8,368,532
4,050,000 538,043 4,050,000 538,043
(3,288) (437) 27,498 3,653
(22,573,251)  (2,998,856) (16,067,210)  (2,134,529)
(3,968, 835) (527,260)  (6,506,041) (864,328)
40,496,964 5,380,022 44,496,585 5,911,371
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31
2017 31 2016 30
12
9,754,830 1,295,929 16,959,480 2,253,067
2,582 343 9,191 1,221
9,757,412 1,296,272 16,968,671 2,254,288
(13,726,247)  (1,823,532) (23,469,569)  (3,117,932)
() (3,968, 835) (527,260)  (6,500,898) (863,644)
0 0 (5.,143) (683)
) (3,968, 835) (527,260)  (6,506,041) (864,328)
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D) T. Rowe Price International Ltd)
2017 7,410 196 2,629
2017 29
112.73
2000 23
60
The Financial Conduct
Authority 2017
1,204
¢)
2017 20
1973 100-0013
1,280 385
1999
3 SMT Trustees (lreland) Limited)

2017 2.50 332 12 1,816
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(4)
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Independent auditors® report to the unitholders of the sub-funds of Daiwa Bond Fund Series
Report on the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion, Daiwa Bond Fund Series” financial statements (the" financial statements” ):

give a true and fair view of the sub-funds® assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31 May 2017
and of their results for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Unit Trusts Act 1990.

What we have audited
The financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements, comprise:

the Statements of Financial Position as at 31st May 2017;

the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

the Statements of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units for
the year then ended;

the Schedules of Investments for each of the sub-funds as at 31 May 2017;

the accounting policies; and

the notes to the financial statements for each of its sub-funds which include other explanatory
information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is
Irish law and accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council and promulgated by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland (Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in lreland), including
FRS 102“ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” .

In applying the financial reporting framework, the Alternative Investment Fund Manager (* AIFM” ) has made a
number of subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such
estimates, the AIFM has made assumptions and considered future events.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the manager
As explained more fully in the Statement of AIFM"s Responsibilities set out on page 7 the AIFM is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements giving a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with Irish
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and lIreland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board"s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders of each of the sub-
funds as a body and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

279/284



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o (= -
o o o o o o o o o o o
What an audit of financial statements involves
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). An audit
involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:

whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the sub-funds® circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed;

the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the AIFM; and

the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the AIFM"s judgements against available evidence,
forming our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing
the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with,
the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin

21st September 2017

(a) The maintenance and integrity of the Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd. website is the responsibility of Daiwa
Securities Co. Ltd.; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these
matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred
to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.

(b) Legislation in the Republic of Ireland governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditor®s report to the member of SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

We have audited the financial statements (“ financial statements” ) of SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited
for the year ended 30 September 2016 which comprise the Profit and loss account, Statement of financial
position, Statement of changes in equity and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is Irish law and FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland. Our audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) (UK & Ireland).

Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit

1 Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified

In our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company as at 30
September 2016 and of its loss for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

2 Our conclusions on other matters on which we are required to report by the Companies Act 2014 are set out
below

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to
be readily and properly audited and the financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

In our opinion the information given in the Directors® Report is consistent with the financial statements.

3 We have nothing to report in respect of matters on which we are required to report by exception

ISAs (UK & Ireland) require that we report to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit,
we have identified information in the annual report that contains a material inconsistency with either that
knowledge or the financial statements, a material misstatement of fact, or that is otherwise misleading.

In addition, the Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of
directors® remuneration and transactions required by sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made.

Basis of our report, responsibilities and restrictions on use

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors” Responsibilities set out on page 6, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view and otherwise comply with the Companies Act 2014. Our responsibility is to audit and express
an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with Irish law and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Financial Reporting Council®s Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

An audit undertaken in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland) involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company"s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is
apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in
the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Whilst an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK & lIreland) is designed to provide reasonable assurance
of identifying material misstatements or omissions it is not guaranteed to do so. Rather the auditor plans
the audit to determine the extent of testing needed to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability
that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements does not exceed materiality for the financial
statements as a whole. This testing requires us to conduct significant audit work on a broad range of
assets, liabilities, income and expense as well as devoting significant time of the most experienced members
of the audit team, in particular the engagement partner responsible for the audit, to subjective areas of
the accounting and reporting.

Our report is made solely to the Company®"s members, as a body, in accordance with section 391 of the
Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company®s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor®s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company*s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Ahern 26 January 2017

for and on behal f of

KPMG

Chartered Accountants, Statutory Audit Firm
1 Harbourmaster Place

IFSC

Dublin 1
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